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ss `bazisbankis~ winaSe rTuli amocanebi dgas. msoflioSi mimdinare finansurma krizisma ,

samwuxarod ,  arc  Cvens  qveyanas  auara  gverdi. 

miuxedavad 2008 wels qveyanaSi ganviTarebuli movlenebisa ,  romlebmac saqarTvelos sabanko 

sistemis stabilurobas mZime dartyma miayena , ganviTarebis TvalsazrisiT konkretuli nabijebis 

gadadgma  mainc  SevZeliT. 

SarSandeli weli imiTac aris gamorCeuli , rom swored SarSan moxda bankis istoriaSi 

gansakuTrebuli mniSvnelobis movlena _ evropis rekonstruqciisa da ganviTarebis banki ̀ bazisbankis~ 

aqciaTa 15 procentis mflobeli gaxda. manamde sruliad damoukideblad ,  sakuTari saxsrebiT moqmedi 

bankisTvis es niSnavs stabilurobis damatebiT garantiebs ,  gazrdil SesaZleblobebs ,  saerTaSoriso 

safinanso  sivrceSi  meti  ndobisa da avtoritetis mopovebas , rac  misi Semdgomi zrda-

ganviTarebisaTvis  axal  stimulsa  da  garemoebebs  Seqmnis.

 `bazisbankSi~ karieruli zrdis mTavari kriteriumi TanamSromelTa profesionalizmia. 

banki afasebs Tavisi personalis kompetenturobas , codnasa da gamocdilebas , iniciativasa da 

mizandasaxulobas , korporaciul erTianobasa da dinamikurobas. personalis swored es Tvisebebi 

ganapirobebs bankis  swraf  da  inovaciur  ganviTarebas ,  ganamtkicebs  mis  adgils  qarTul  bazarze. 

gvjera , rom axal garemoSic TiToeuli Tqvenganis , menejerebis , xelmZRvaneli rgolis 

kvalifikaciisa da niWis wyalobiT ,  mivaRwevT dasaxul miznebs. `bazisbanki~ mudam iqneba warmatebuli ,

konkurentunariani ,  reitinguli  kompania !  es  aris  TiToeuli  Cvenganis  mizanic.

sameTvalyureo sabWos Tavmjdomaris mimarTva

profesionalizmi , novatoroba da gunduri 

muSaobis suliskveTeba _ es  aris is ZiriTadi faseulobebi ,

romlebsac ss `bazisbanki~ daarsebidan dRemde ganuxrelad 

icavs da romlebic gansazRvravs mis korporaciul 

kulturas.

15 wlis ganmavlobaSi `bazisbanki~ Camoyalibda ,

rogorc myar safuZvelze mdgomi  universaluri  finansuri 

instituti , romelic kerZo pirebsa da kompaniebs sabanko 

momsaxurebis srulfasovan kompleqss sTavazobs. Cveni 

yoveldRiuri amocanaa , gavaumjobesoT da sul ufro 

mravalferovani gavxadoT Cveni momsaxureba , saukeTeso 

sabanko produqtebi da pirobebi SevTavazoT  Cvens  

klientebs. 
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ADDRESS BY THE CHAIRMAN OF SUPERVISORY BOARD

Professionalism, novelty and urge for teamwork are the core principles that JSC Basisbank has been 
committed to since the very beginning of the company activities. These principles define the corporate 
culture of our bank.  

For 15 years Basisbank has grown into a strong universal financial establishment that provides full 
package of banking services for private and corporate customers. Our daily task is to improve and 
expand our services, to offer the best banking products and favorable conditions. Today, JSC 
Basisbank faces real challenges. The ongoing global financial crisis has affected our country too. 
Despite the consequences of the last year developments, that have seriously damaged the stability of 
the Georgian banking system, we yet succeeded to move forward.

2008 was a remarkable year for the most important event in the bank's history – the European Bank for 
Reconstruction and Development became 15 percent shareholder of JSC Basisbank. For an 
independent bank operating with the private financial resources only, this event signifies further 
guarantees for stability, enlarged potential, and possibility to earn more confidence and authority in the 
international financial system that are so vital for further progress of the bank.

Staff professionalism serves as a major criterion for a career development within JSC Basisbank. We 
respect competence, knowledge and experience of our staff, appreciate the initiative demonstration 
and a sense of willpower, corporate unity and dynamism. These are exactly the traits stipulating rapid 
and advanced development of the bank and strengthening its position on the Georgian market.

We strongly believe that by the qualification and endowment of each of our personnel, managers and 
the entire leading team, we will achieve our goals in any new environment. Basisbank will always be a 
successful and competitive company! This is our ultimate and attainable goal. 

Taras Nizharadze

Chairman of Supervisory Board



sruliad 

damoukideblad , mxolod da mxolod sakuTari finansuri Tu inteleqtualuri resursebis 

mobilizebis gziT ,  SevZeliT  gavmxdariyaviT  myari  da  Zlieri  finansuri  instituti.

 daarsebis 

dRidan swori gziT movdivarT _ sworia Cveni strategia ,  Cven mier arCeuli prioritetebi  da Cveni 

mizani: viyoT ara marto momgebiani da warmatebuli ,  aramed sasargebloc !  es aris Cveni misiis erT-

erTi mTavari postulatic: xeli SevuwyoT sazogadoebaSi ndobasa da urTierTsargeblianobaze 

dafuZnebuli  saqmiani  urTierTobis  ganmtkicebas. 

mTavari orientiri ,

ualternativod , saqarTveloSi Tanamedrove ganaTlebis xelSewyobaa

 ase movediT  dRevandlamde  da axla ukve obieqturad vamayobT ,  rom  

damoukideblad , mxolod da mxolod sakuTari finansuri Tu inteleqtualuri resursebis 

mobilizebis gziT ,  SevZeliT  gavmxdariyaviT  myari  da  Zlieri  finansuri  instituti.

Cveni saqmianoba marTlac gansakuTrebul sifrTxilesa da yuradRebas moiTxovs. sabanko 

sistemaSi yvelaze metad sandooba fasobs. ndobis mopoveba ki rTuli da Sromatevadi saqmea. dRes ,

rodesac ,  ukve meramdened ,  wina wlis Sedegebs vajamebT ,  kidev erTxel vrwmundebiT ,  rom daarsebis 

dRidan swori gziT movdivarT _ sworia Cveni strategia ,  Cven mier arCeuli prioritetebi  da Cveni 

mizani: viyoT ara marto momgebiani da warmatebuli ,  aramed sasargebloc !  es aris Cveni misiis erT-

erTi mTavari postulatic: xeli SevuwyoT sazogadoebaSi ndobasa da urTierTsargeblianobaze 

dafuZnebuli  saqmiani  urTierTobis  ganmtkicebas. 

banksa  da  mis  klientebs  Soris  wlebis ganmavlobaSi  Camoyalibebuli  urTierToba  

araerT SemTxvevaSi srulfasovan , ormxriv partniorobad qceula , ris Sedegadac aseve araerT 

adamians  Tu  saqmes usargeblia. esec Cvens misiad migvaCnia _ SevexidoT tradiciul faseulobebze 

dafuZnebuli , stabiluri da warmatebuli sazogadoebis Seqmnis saqmes. aq ki mTavari orientiri ,

ualternativod , saqarTveloSi Tanamedrove ganaTlebis xelSewyobaa. amitomac , gaisadac da 

momavalSic ,  didi siamovnebiTa da siamayiT gavagrZelebT im proeqtebs ,  romlebic Cveni momavali 

Taobebis karg profesionalebad momzadebas uwyobs xels. `bazisbankma~ kargad icis kvalificiuri 

kadrebis fasi da ,  sxvaTa Soris ,  am TvalsazrisiT erTgvarad eqskluziuri gamocdilebac ki aqvs _ 

dRes misi marTvis sapatio pasuxismgebloba im axalgazrdebs akisriaT , romlebic maRali klasis 

profesionalebad  missave  wiaRSi  Camoyalibdnen.
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damoukideblad , mxolod da mxolod sakuTari finansuri Tu inteleqtualuri resursebis 

mobilizebis gziT ,  SevZeliT  gavmxdariyaviT  myari  da  Zlieri  finansuri  instituti.

Cveni saqmianoba marTlac gansakuTrebul sifrTxilesa da yuradRebas moiTxovs. sabanko 

sistemaSi yvelaze metad sandooba fasobs. ndobis mopoveba ki rTuli da Sromatevadi saqmea. dRes ,

rodesac ,  ukve meramdened ,  wina wlis Sedegebs vajamebT ,  kidev erTxel vrwmundebiT ,  rom daarsebis 

dRidan swori gziT movdivarT _ sworia Cveni strategia ,  Cven mier arCeuli prioritetebi  da Cveni 

mizani: viyoT ara marto momgebiani da warmatebuli ,  aramed sasargebloc !  es aris Cveni misiis erT-

erTi mTavari postulatic: xeli SevuwyoT sazogadoebaSi ndobasa da urTierTsargeblianobaze 

dafuZnebuli  saqmiani  urTierTobis  ganmtkicebas. 

banksa  da  mis  klientebs  Soris  wlebis ganmavlobaSi  Camoyalibebuli  urTierToba  

araerT SemTxvevaSi srulfasovan , ormxriv partniorobad qceula , ris Sedegadac aseve araerT 

adamians  Tu  saqmes usargeblia. esec Cvens misiad migvaCnia _ SevexidoT tradiciul faseulobebze 

dafuZnebuli , stabiluri da warmatebuli sazogadoebis Seqmnis saqmes. aq ki mTavari orientiri ,

ualternativod , saqarTveloSi Tanamedrove ganaTlebis xelSewyobaa. amitomac , gaisadac da 

momavalSic ,  didi siamovnebiTa da siamayiT gavagrZelebT im proeqtebs ,  romlebic Cveni momavali 

Taobebis karg profesionalebad momzadebas uwyobs xels. `bazisbankma~ kargad icis kvalificiuri 

kadrebis fasi da ,  sxvaTa Soris ,  am TvalsazrisiT erTgvarad eqskluziuri gamocdilebac ki aqvs _ 

dRes misi marTvis sapatio pasuxismgebloba im axalgazrdebs akisriaT , romlebic maRali klasis 

profesionalebad  missave  wiaRSi  Camoyalibdnen.

sruliad 

generaluri direqtoris mimarTva

msoflioSi  yoveldRiurad aTiaTasobiT 

bizneskompania fuZndeba , Tumca maTi umravlesoba 

pirvelive  wels  wyvets arsebobas. amgvari kraxi TiTqmis 

kanonzomieri movlenaa , Tuki ugulebelyof ganviTarebis 

ZiriTad principebs da moumzadebel , swraf mogebaze 

gaTvlil ,  naCqarev gadawyvetilebebs iReb. biznesis 

mxolod nabij-nabij , gonivrul mSeneblobas moaqvs 

sasurveli Sedegi.

swored am principiT , dakvirvebiT ,  frTxilad ,  

magram mizandasaxulad  daviwyeT  muSaoba 15 wlis winaT. 

mxolod sakuTar Zalebs veyrdnobodiT  da , SeiZleba 

iTqvas ,  yoveli  nabijiTa  Tu gadawyvetilebiT gamocdas 

vabarebdiT sakuTari Tavisa da Cven mier wamowyebuli 

saqmis winaSe.
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Each day tens of thousands of companies start the business. However, their majority cease to exist on their first 
year of work. Such a failure is almost a natural phenomenon if the key principles of development are neglected 
and the management makes rush decisions seeking rapid profits. Only a step-by-step and gradual development 
of business provides the desired results.

Guided by these principles, through supervision, caution and task-orientation, we started work 15 years ago. We 
could only rely on our own resources, and each of our steps and decisions put us to the test in fact.  

We have come to the present this way and now we are really proud for the success we achieved, without 
any assistance.

Banking business is very sensitive, entailing special vigilance and prudence. Reliability is the most difficult 
feature to obtain and, therefore, has the highest value in the banking system. Today, summing up the results of 
the previous year, we get further assured that we have chosen the right path toward success and at every 
stage of development our strategy and priorities proved to be correct. We strive to be not merely profitable 
and successful company but helpful as well! One of the main postulates of our mission is to foster confidence-
based and mutually beneficial business contacts. 

Relations developed between Basisbank and its customers have often resulted in an effective bilateral 
partnership benefitting a number of people and businesses. 

Promoting the establishment of stable and successful societies built up on traditional customs and values is one 
of our objectives. Here, the encouragement of contemporary education is the key point. In this perspective, 
we proudly continue the projects supporting the professional growth of the future generations. Basisbank well 
knows the value of qualified personnel and has a certain exclusive experience in promoting the young 
professionals to the most responsible positions in the bank governance. 

In 2008, Basisbank carried on its regular business by creating and diversifying the bank products, expanding the 
network of branches, and improving the service quality. However, this year was full of extremely remarkable 
developments that led to a central event what is surely the reached agreement between the EBRD and 
Basisbank on the acquisition of the 15% of shares of the latter. For the first time in the bank's history, the 
foreign capital entered Basisbank. On the one hand, this fact ensures sustainability of our company, and 
on the other, it speaks of the recognition of Basisbank by the international finance institutions.  

In line with the great achievement, the company encountered a rather tense and unforeseeable obstacle. August 
events and the global financial crisis had a negative impact on the overall economic situation shattering any 
powerful and stable business. Nonetheless, the clearly defined priorities and the high performance of our 
employees helped the company to overcome the difficulties. Today, Basisbank is strong and stable as before 
providing service to more customers and ready to support much more interesting projects. 

We owe success to our dedicated staff. As one team, we work for the present welfare and future success of the 
company. The concept of corporate solidarity is one of our main dignities and it fills me with hope that we are able 
to respond greater challenges. 

Zurab Tsikhistavi
Director General

ADDRESS BY THE DIRECTOR GENERAL
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`bazisbankis~ cxovrebaSi gardamtexi da saetapo movlena iyo evropis rekonstruqciisa da 

ganviTarebis bankTan xelSekrulebis gaformeba -is mier `bazisbankis~ aqciebis 15 %-is 

SeZenis Taobaze. 

pirvelad daarsebidan 15 wlis ganmavlobaSi ,  `bazisbankSi~ Semovida ucxouri kapitali ,  

rac , erTi mxriv , Cveni kompaniis finansuri siZlieris damatebiTi garantia , meore mxriv ki ,

erTmniSvnelovnad miuTiTebs  saerTaSoriso  safinanso  institutebis  mier `bazisbankis~ 

aRiarebasa  da  misdami  ndobaze.

 EBRD

2008 wels `bazisbanki~ tradiciulad ,  Cveuli ritmiT ,  agrZelebda muSaobas bankis axali 

produqtebis Seqmnasa da daxvewaze , qselis gafarToebaze , klientTa momsaxurebis formebis 

gaumjobesebaze. da mainc ,  Tamamad SeiZleba iTqvas ,  rom es weli sruliad gansakuTrebul adgils 

daikavebs bankis istoriaSi , rogorc uaRresad mniSvnelovani movlenebiT aRsavse. am wels 

`bazisbankis~ cxovrebaSi gardamtexi da saetapo movlena iyo evropis rekonstruqciisa da 

ganviTarebis bankTan xelSekrulebis gaformeba EBRD-is mier `bazisbankis~ aqciebis 15 %-is 

SeZenis Taobaze. 

pirvelad daarsebidan 15 wlis ganmavlobaSi ,  `bazisbankSi~ Semovida ucxouri kapitali ,  

rac , erTi mxriv , Cveni kompaniis finansuri siZlieris damatebiTi garantia , meore mxriv ki ,

erTmniSvnelovnad miuTiTebs  saerTaSoriso  safinanso  institutebis  mier `bazisbankis~ 

aRiarebasa  da  misdami  ndobaze.

am  didi warmatebis kvaldakval ,  kompanias sakuTari Zalebis mosinjva sakmaod daZabul da 

uprognozo viTarebaSic mouwia.  agvistoSi ganviTarebuli movlenebi ,  mTel msoflios 

modebuli finansuri krizisi... _ es is garemoebebia ,  romlebic nebismier  myar da stabilur 

bizness Searyevda. `bazisbankis~ menejmentis mier sworad gansazRvruli prioritetebisa da 

bankis TiToeuli TanamSromlis mier sakuTari movaleobis pirnaTlad Sesrulebis wyalobiT ,

Cven es siZneleebi davZlieT. dRes Cveni kompania kvlavindeburad Zlieri da stabiluria ,

vemsaxurebiT ufro met adamiansa da organizacias da mzad varT ,  davafinansoT axali saintereso 

proeqtebi.

am  yvelaferSi  didia  bankis  TiToeuli  TanamSromlis wvlili.  Cven  erTad  vqmniT 

Cveni kompaniis dRevandel dRes da erTad vuyriT safuZvels mis momaval warmatebebs. 

korporaciuli solidarobis suliskveTeba ,  romelic Cveni kompaniis erT-erTi mTavari 

Rirsebaa ,  maZlevs imeds ,  rom Cven erTad kidev ufro met simaRleebs davZlevT. `bazisbanki~ da  

bazisbankelebi  amas  imsaxureben.
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zurab cixisTavi

generaluri direqtori



2008 wlis maisSi , kievSi gaformebuli xelSekrulebis safuZvelze , evropis 

rekonstruqciisa da ganviTarebis banki (EBRD) `bazisbankis~ aqciaTa
15%-iani paketis mflobeli gaxda

EBRD `bazisbankis~ aqcioneria

`bazisbanki~ _ stabiluri , saimedo da sasargeblo partniori
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EBRD - BASISBANK SHAREHOLDER

BASISBANK - A STABLE, RELIABLE AND USEFUL PARTNER

UNDER THE AGREEMENT SIGNED IN MAY, 2008, KIEV, 

THE EUROPEAN BANK FOR RECONSTRUCTION AND DEVELOPMENT (EBRD)

 ACQUIRED 15% SHARES OF BASISBANK.
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Tumca ,  unda aRiniSnos ,rom es sirTule ,  imavdroulad ,  sasargebloc aris ,  radgan swored 

amgvari situaciebi  awrTobs  da aZlierebs  nebismieri ,  gansakuTrebiT  ki  finansuri ,  institutis 

Sida resursebs. Tu gaviTvaliswinebT ,  rom `bazisbankis~ menejments ZiriTadad axalgazrda ,  Tanac 

bankSive gamozrdili kadrebi uZRvebian ,  es garemoeba ormagad sasargeblod SegviZlia SevafasoT _ 

swored  aseT garemoSi muSaoba  SesZens maT fasdaudebel gamocdilebas ,  romelic momavalSi 

yvelaze ufro seriozuli  amocanebis  gadawyvetaSi  daexmareba. 

marTvis axali sistemis danergvaSi ,  adgilobriv kadrebTan erTad , monawileoben 

saerTaSoriso gamocdilebis mqone konsultantebi. es simbiozi gansakuTrebiT damaimedebelia _ 

praqtika gviCvenebs ,  rom  axalbeda da gamocdili kadrebis TanamSromloba yovelTvis  

sasargebloa.

Cemi  mxriv ,  erTi ram SemiZlia dabejiTebiT ganvacxado: me ,  rogorc sameTvalyureo sabWos 

wevri ,  Sevecdebi ,  Cemi wvlili Sevitano imaSi ,  rom `bazisbankma~ warmatebiT ganvlos gardamavali 

etapis sirTuleebi.

sabina Ziurmani
`bazisbankis~ sameTvalyureo sabWoSi

 EBRD-is warmomadgeneli

2008 weli Zalian mniSvnelovani iyo `bazisbankisTvis~ ,  radgan 

swored am wels ganxorcielda Zireuli cvlilebebi bankis menejmentSi. 

gansakuTebiT minda xazi gavusva , rom es cvlilebebi daemTxva 

qveynisTvis sakmaod rTul periods ,  ramac garkveulwilad gaarTula 

bankis cxovrebaSi mimdinare am mniSvnelovani cvlilebebis dinamikuri   

ganxorcieleba. 

SABINA  DZIURMAN
Member of Supervisory Board of Basisbank

EBRD Representative 

2008 was a very important year during which fundamental changes carried out within Basisbank, particularly with 
respect to the management. It should be noted that these changes have taken place during an extremely 
challenging and difficult period for the country in which the implementation of ongoing reforms and development of 
the economy were considerably hindered.

However, these difficulties can be viewed as having had a positive effect - a challenging environment requires any 
institution to strengthen its internal resources through training staff and management to meet those challenges.  
As Basisbank's management is mostly composed of relatively young staff who commenced their financial careers 
in Basisbank, they are deeply committed to the bank and to ensuring that it weathers today's challenges. The 
turbulent financial environment has enabled management to gain invaluable experience and also to contribute to 
building a strong and stable institution which will endeavour to increase shareholder value and to provide high 
standards of client service long into the future.
    
A new and enhanced management system has been jointly introduced by Basisbank's local personnel alongside 
internationally experienced advisers.  This symbiosis is especially promising since in practice the cooperation 
between young staff who are eager to learn, supported by experienced consultants always proves fruitful. I can 
assure you, as a member of the Supervisory Board of Basisbank, I will do my best to contribute to the bank 
overcoming the difficulties in this transitional period.
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`bazisbankis~ didi potenciali ,  jansaRi menejmenti da dinamikuri ganviTareba – es aris is 

ZiriTadi  garemoebebi , romlebmac misca biZgi , 2007  wels, -sa da `bazisbanks~ Soris 

partnioruli  urTierTobis  Camoyalibebas.

-ma `bazisbanks~ 6 milioni aSS 

dolaris moculobis sakredito xazi gamouyo. Tanxa gankuTvnili iyo mikro ,  mcire da saSualo  

biznesis  dasafinanseblad.

dResdReobiT , `bazisbanki~ erTaderTi bankia  saqarTveloSi ,  romlis kapitalSic 

dasavleli  partniorebis  gareSe  monawileobs. 

`am  

TanamSromlobis  Sedegs  sabanko seqtori  myisierad  igrZnobs. `bazisbanki~  bazarze  ukve  

sruliad  gansxvavebuli  saxiT ,  axali  tipis moTamaSed gamova  da daamkvidrebs axal ,  

novatorul  mimarTulebebs~ ,

`bazisbanki~ aSkarad  

ganaxlebuli ,  gazrdili SesaZleblobebisa  da  myari  poziciis  mqone ,  konkurentunariani  

moTamaSis  saxiT  moevlina  sabanko  bazars. 

 EBRD

EBRD

EBRD  

`bazisbankis~ didi potenciali ,  jansaRi menejmenti da dinamikuri ganviTareba – es aris is 

ZiriTadi  garemoebebi , romlebmac misca biZgi , 2007  wels, EBRD-sa da `bazisbanks~ Soris 

partnioruli  urTierTobis  Camoyalibebas. 

sawyis etapze TanamSromloba ori mimarTulebiT warimarTa: erTi mxriv ,  kapitalSi 

Semosvla da ,  meore mxriv ,  krediti ,  romlis  mizani  mcire  da  saSualo  biznesis  ganviTareba da 

mikrosesxebis  biznesis  danergva iyo. `bazisbanki~ pirveli partniori banki iyo specialuri 

programisa GFSF, romelic  evropis  rekonstruqciisa da ganviTarebis bankma saqarTvelos 

finansuri seqtorisaTvis SeimuSava. TanamSromloba warimarTa xelSekrulebis farglebSi ,

romelic  2007  wels gaformda. xelSekrulebis Tanaxmad, EBRD-ma `bazisbanks~ 6 milioni aSS 

dolaris moculobis sakredito xazi gamouyo. Tanxa gankuTvnili iyo mikro ,  mcire da saSualo  

biznesis  dasafinanseblad.

starti  warmatebuli  gamodga. `bazisbankma~ kvalificiurad da  saerTaSoriso  

standartis  Sesabamisad Seasrula  xelSekrulebiT  nakisri  valdebulebebi. amgvarad ,  Seiqmna 

myari niadagi Semdgomi , ufro  maRali xarisxis  TanamSromlobisaTvis. evropis erT-erTma  

yvelaze  solidurma  bankma ,  seriozuli  kvlevisa  da analizis  Sedegad ,  miiRo gadawyvetileba ,  

ganexorcielebina  investicia `bazisbankSi~ da , amgvarad ,  gamxdariyo misi  aqcioneri.  

molaparakeba  manamde  qarTul  sabanko  sivrceSi  uanalogo  TanamSromlobis  Taobaze  2008 

wlis  maisSi  dasrulda. Sedegad , gaformda xelSekruleba , romlis safuZvelze  evropis  

rekonstruqciisa da ganviTarebis  banki ,  15%-iani paketis  SeZeniT ,  ̀ bazisbankis~ aqcioneri  gaxda. 

dResdReobiT , `bazisbanki~ erTaderTi bankia  saqarTveloSi ,  romlis kapitalSic EBRD  

dasavleli  partniorebis  gareSe  monawileobs. 

evrobanksa da `bazisbanks~ Soris Camoyalibebul  sruliad  axali  standartis  

partniorobas  mxareebi  imTaviTve  optimisturad  afasebdnen ,  rac  savsebiT  logikuri  iyo. ̀ am  

TanamSromlobis  Sedegs  sabanko seqtori  myisierad  igrZnobs. `bazisbanki~  bazarze  ukve  

sruliad  gansxvavebuli  saxiT ,  axali  tipis moTamaSed gamova  da daamkvidrebs axal ,  

novatorul  mimarTulebebs~ , _ aseTi iyo maSin `bazisbankis~ generaluri direqtoris zurab  

cixisTavis prognozi. aseTive  iyo  EBRD-is  mesveurTa molodinic. da marTlac ,  bankis  

cxovrebaSi momxdari  am  saetapo  mniSvnelobis  movlenis  Semdeg ,  `bazisbanki~ aSkarad  

ganaxlebuli ,  gazrdili SesaZleblobebisa  da  myari  poziciis  mqone ,  konkurentunariani  

moTamaSis  saxiT  moevlina  sabanko  bazars. 



9

A huge potential, a strong management and a dynamic development of Basisbank 

predetermined the establishment of partnership relationships between the EBRD and 

Basisbank in 2007.

At the outset, cooperation has developed into two areas: on the one hand, the EBRD made 

investment, and, on the other, it allocated a credit to Basisbank to foster small and medium 

enterprises and establish microfinance business. Basisbank was the first partner bank under 

Georgian Financial Sector Framework. The project has been specially designed by the EBRD to 

support financial sector in Georgia. Under the agreement between the EBRD and Basisbank, 

signed in 2007, Basisbank received USD 6 million credit line in order to finance micro, small 

and medium enterprises. 

It was a successful start. Basisbank carried out the contractual obligations at high level and in 

accordance with the international standards. This, certainly, stimulated the further cooperation. Upon 

the serious research and study, one of the most influential banks of Europe decided to make an 

investment and become a shareholder of Basisbank. This was the EBRD's first project in Georgia. 

The negotiations completed in May, 2008 resulting in an agreement under which the EBRD has 

acquired 15 % of Basisbank stakes. Currently, Basisbank is the only bank in Georgia, where the 

EBRD is involved without western partners. 

The parties have therewith assessed the partnership positive and optimistic. “The effect of this 

cooperation will be shortly felt in the banking sector. Basisbank will emerge on the market with 

a completely new and different image, as a new kind of player to establish innovative trends”, 

Zurab Tsikhistavi, Director General stated. The EBRD representatives had similar forecasts. Indeed, 

following this important event, Basisbank emerged as a competitive player with the renewed and 

increased capacities and solid position in the marketplace. 
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TxuTmetwliani  gamocdilebis mqone ,  stabiluri ,  saimedo da sasargeblo banki winsvlasa da 

ganviTarebas amjerad ukve axal  strategiul  partniorTan erTad SemuSavebuli instituciuri 

gegmis mixedviT ganagrZobs. `bazisbankis~ korporaciuli mmarTvelobis srulyofisa da axali  

organizaciuli struqturis Camoyalibebis instituciuri mSeneblobis (IBP) gegma im tipis 

cvlilebebis  etapobriv  ganxorcielebas  iTvaliswinebs ,  romlebic  kidev ufro srulyofs bankis 

urTierTobas klientebTan ,  saqmian  partniorebTan ,  TanamSromlebTan Tu aqcionerebTan. 

sabolood ki , am gegmis umTavresi prioriteti klientTa  interesebis ganuxreli  dacva , maTs  

moTxovnebze  maqsimalurad  morgebuli  sabanko  produqtebis  mravalferovneba  da  sabanko  

momsaxurebis  progresuli  formebis  danergvaa. 

A stable, reliable and useful bank, which counts 15 years of its history, proceeds to develop under the institutional 

plan drawn up together with the new partner. The Institutional Building Plan of Basisbank is targeted at improving 

the corporate governance and establishing a new organizational structure. The IBP is focused on the gradual 

implementation of the restructuring process to improve the bank's relationships with customers, business 

partners, personnel and shareholders. The priority goal of the plan is to protect customer interests and to create a 

wide range of banking products and services that fully meet the increasing demands of our clients.
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EBRD - evropis 
rekonstruqciisa da 
ganviTarebis banki 

EBRD (The European Bank for Reconstruction and 
Development) - regionaluri saxelmwifoTaSorisi 

banki centraluri da aRmosavleT evropisa da 

damoukidebel saxelmwifoTa Tanamegobrobis wevri 

qveynebis  grZelvadiani  dakreditebisTvis. 

evrobanki 1990 wlis 29 maiss, parizSi, dafuZnda, 

oficialurad ki 1991 wlis 15 aprils  daiwyo 

funqcionireba.  bankis Stab-bina londonSi 

mdebareobs. sawesdebo  kapitali 20 mlrd evroa. 

EBRD-is  aqcioneria 40 qveyana.  sakontrolo paketi 

`didi rvianis~ wevrebs ekuTvniT. 

banki proeqtebs msoflios 29 qveyanaSi axorcielebs. 

igi saerTaSoriso bazarze gascems sesxebs im 

investiciebis dafinansebis an Tanadafinansebis  

mizniT,  romlebic centraluri da aRmosavleT 

evropis, aseve, yofili sabWoTa kavSiris  qveynebSi 

sabazro  ekonomikis ganviTarebasa da gaZlierebas 

uwyobs  xels. 

EBRD-is dabandebebi yovelTvis mniSvnelovani, 

warmatebuli  da  perspeqtiulia. investirebis kargad  

gaTvlili  strategiis  meSveobiT,  igi  arCevs  

biznesis  im sferoebs,  romlebic  swraf  da efeqtian 

ukugebas  iZleva. 

saqarTvelosa da evropis rekonstruqciisa da 

ganviTarebis banks Soris  TanamSromloba 1996  

wlidan  daiwyo. 

12

EBRD - EUROPEAN BANK FOR 
RECONSTRUCTION AND 

DEVELOPMENT

The European Bank for Reconstruction and 
Development is a regional intergovernmental bank 
created for the long-term crediting to the central and 
eastern European countries and the CIS. 

The EBRD was established in Paris on 29 May 1991 
and commenced the first official operations on 15 
April 1991 with the headquarters settled in London. 
With a subscribed capital totaling EUR 20 billion, the 
EBRD has a solid capital base. It is owned by 40 
shareholder countries with the voting power 
belonging to G8 members. 

The EBRD is operating in 29 countries. The Bank 
provides  loans  at   the  international  market to  
(co-)finance investments to help build market 
economies in countries from Central and Eastern 
Europe and ex-Soviet Union.     

The EBRD investments carry a great importance, 
being always successful and prospective. Having 
the well-defined investment strategy, the European 
Bank is proficient in selecting the business spheres 
that give fast and effective results.

Cooperation between Georgia and the European 
Bank for Reconstruction and Development started 
in 1996.
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`DAI Europe~-s am sferoSi  saqmianobis mdidari gamocdileba aqvs. uwinares yovlisa ,  Cven 

safuZvlianad vecnobiT kompanias ,  raTa  CamovayaliboT ,  ra konkretuli  samuSaoa  Sesasrulebeli.  

minda  sruli  pasuxismgeblobiT da ,  amasTan ,  siamovnebiT  ganvacxado ,  rom  viTareba ,  romelic  

dagvxvda `bazisbankSi~ ,  iyo  mosalodnelze  bevrad ufro kargi da jansaRi. erTi welic ar gasula ,

rac evrobanki  `bazisbankis~ aqcioneri gaxda  da am mokle xnis ganmavlobaSi `bazisbankis~ 

menejmentma Zalze seriozuli cvlilebebi ganaxorciela. maT warmatebiT danerges axali 

organizaciuli struqtura da moamzades niadagi instituciuri mSeneblobis gegmis  

gansaxorcieleblad.

`bazisbankis~ sawesdebo kapitalSi  EBRD-is Semosvlis Semdeg ,  bankis instituciuri 

srulyofis mimarTulebiT seriozuli cvlilebebi mimdinareobs. `bazisbankis~ korporaciuli 

mmarTvelobis ,  efeqtianobisa  da  riskebis  marTvis  gasaumjobeseblad,  EBRD-ma ,  grantis saxiT ,

naxevari milioni evro gamoyo. RonisZiebaTa kvalificiurad dagegmvisa da ganxorcielebis mizniT 

sakonsultacio kompaniis SesarCevad , Sesabamisi grantisa da erToblivi programis farglebSi ,

gamocxadda saerTaSoriso tenderi. tenderSi  monawileoba  miiRo msoflios 20-mde sxvadasxva 

cnobilma kompaniam. maTgan ,  meore etapisTvis , EBRD-Tan erToblivi  konsultaciebis  Sedegad ,  

SeirCa 6 kompania. sabolood ,  am eqvsidan  gamovlinda  gamarjvebuli  sakonsultacio  organizacia 

`DAI Europe~ , romlis eqspertebi da specialistebi ukve muSaoben `bazisbankSi~ uaxlesi 

teqnologiebisa  da  wamyvani  sabanko  organizaciebis  gamocdilebis  danergvis  mizniT.

`DAI Europe~-s am sferoSi  saqmianobis mdidari gamocdileba aqvs. uwinares yovlisa ,  Cven 

safuZvlianad vecnobiT kompanias ,  raTa  CamovayaliboT ,  ra konkretuli  samuSaoa  Sesasrulebeli.  

minda  sruli  pasuxismgeblobiT da ,  amasTan ,  siamovnebiT  ganvacxado ,  rom  viTareba ,  romelic  

dagvxvda `bazisbankSi~ ,  iyo  mosalodnelze  bevrad ufro kargi da jansaRi. erTi welic ar gasula ,

rac evrobanki  `bazisbankis~ aqcioneri gaxda  da am mokle xnis ganmavlobaSi `bazisbankis~ 

menejmentma Zalze seriozuli cvlilebebi ganaxorciela. maT warmatebiT danerges axali 

organizaciuli struqtura da moamzades niadagi instituciuri mSeneblobis gegmis  

gansaxorcieleblad.

`bazisbankis~ sawesdebo kapitalSi  EBRD-is Semosvlis Semdeg ,  bankis instituciuri 

srulyofis mimarTulebiT seriozuli cvlilebebi mimdinareobs. `bazisbankis~ korporaciuli 

mmarTvelobis ,  efeqtianobisa  da  riskebis  marTvis  gasaumjobeseblad,  EBRD-ma ,  grantis saxiT ,

naxevari milioni evro gamoyo. RonisZiebaTa kvalificiurad dagegmvisa da ganxorcielebis mizniT 

sakonsultacio kompaniis SesarCevad , Sesabamisi grantisa da erToblivi programis farglebSi ,

gamocxadda saerTaSoriso tenderi. tenderSi  monawileoba  miiRo msoflios 20-mde sxvadasxva 

cnobilma kompaniam. maTgan ,  meore etapisTvis , EBRD-Tan erToblivi  konsultaciebis  Sedegad ,  

SeirCa 6 kompania. sabolood ,  am eqvsidan  gamovlinda  gamarjvebuli  sakonsultacio  organizacia 

`DAI Europe~ , romlis eqspertebi da specialistebi ukve muSaoben `bazisbankSi~ uaxlesi 

teqnologiebisa  da  wamyvani  sabanko  organizaciebis  gamocdilebis  danergvis  mizniT.

`DAI Europe~-s am sferoSi  saqmianobis mdidari gamocdileba aqvs. uwinares yovlisa ,  Cven 

safuZvlianad vecnobiT kompanias ,  raTa  CamovayaliboT ,  ra konkretuli  samuSaoa  Sesasrulebeli.  

minda  sruli  pasuxismgeblobiT da ,  amasTan ,  siamovnebiT  ganvacxado ,  rom  viTareba ,  romelic  

dagvxvda `bazisbankSi~ ,  iyo  mosalodnelze  bevrad ufro kargi da jansaRi. erTi welic ar gasula ,

rac evrobanki  `bazisbankis~ aqcioneri gaxda  da am mokle xnis ganmavlobaSi `bazisbankis~ 

menejmentma Zalze seriozuli cvlilebebi ganaxorciela. maT warmatebiT danerges axali 

organizaciuli struqtura da moamzades niadagi instituciuri mSeneblobis gegmis  

gansaxorcieleblad.

jon grumi
 sakonsultacio jgufi `DAI Europe~

organizaciuli mowyobis axali modeli 
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A NEW MODEL OF ORGANIZATIONAL ARRANGEMENT

Since the EBRD made the capital investment in Basisbank, great changes have been taken toward 

the institutional development. The EBRD provided half a million Euro grant for Basisbank to improve 

the corporate strategy, effectiveness and risk management. For the effective realization of the plan an 

international tender has been announced to select an advisory board in the framework of the joint 

program and the grant. About 20 well-known international companies have applied. The EBRD and 

Basisbank selected only 6 applicants for the second phase, finally DAI Europe winning the bid. The 

experts and specialists of this company have already started launching the latest technologies and 

expertise in Basisbank.  

DAI Europe has wide experience of successful consulting work throughout the world. Initially 

we make a thorough assessment of a company to determine the best way forward and without 

doubt, we found the environment in Basisbank extremely encouraging. Less than a year ago 

the European Bank for Reconstruction and Development became a Basisbank shareholder 

and already the Bank Management has made substantial changes. A new organizational 

structure has been launched and much work has been done to prepare the way for the 

Institutional Building Programme we are undertaking with the Bank.

JOHN GROOM
DAI  Europe - Consulting Group



eqspertTa da profesionalTa SefasebiT ,  es aris maqsimalurad gamarTuli da `bazisbankze~ saukeTesod  

morgebuli  struqtura ,  romelSic mkafiod  aris gansazRvruli ara  marto  calkeuli  departamentis ,  aramed  

TiToeuli TanamSromlis kompetencia ,  ufleba da movaleoba. amgvari gamijvna ,  erTi mxriv ,  daexmareba  maT  

profesiul  zrdasa  da  gunduri  muSaobis  principebis  gaTavisebaSi ,  meore  mxriv ki ,  xelsayrel  garemos  

Seqmnis  bankis  Semdgomi  warmatebuli  ganviTarebisaTvis. 

According to the experts, this is the most efficient structure being fully adjusted to the Basisbank requirements. The structure 

clearly defines the competences, rights and obligations of each of the personnel and department. Such allocation of 

responsibilities is helpful to grow professionally and acquire teamwork principles, on the one hand, and it will create a useful base 

for the bank's future success, on the other hand. 

korporaciuli mimarTulebis direqtori sacalo mimarTulebis direqtori generaluri direqtori sainformacio teqnologiebis
da riskebis marTvis direqtori finansuri direqtori

korporaciuli ganyofileba

mcire da saSualo sesxebis ganyofileba

saerTaSoriso urTierTobebis ganyofileba

finansuri analizis da dokumenturi
 operaciebis ganyofileba

gayidvebis da personaluri momsaxurebis 
ganyofileba

produqtebis ganviTarebis da
marketingis ganyofileba

xarisxis kontrolis ganyofileba

serviscentrebis qselis ganviTarebis 
departamenti

adamianuri resursebis marTvis ganyofileba

sazogadoebasTan urTierTobis ganyofileba

iuridiuli departamenti

riskebis marTvis ganyofileba

korporaciuli da sacalo
dakreditebis ganyofileba

finansuri monitoringis ganyofileba

programuli uzrunvelyofis ganyofileba

informaciul-teqnologiuri
mxardaWeris ganyofileba

saxazino departamenti

sabuRaltro ganyofileba

dagegmvisa da biujetirebis ganyofileba

finansuri angariSgebis ganyofileba

operaciebis marTvis da
angariSsworebis ganyofileba

sameurneo ganyofileba

komitetebi

sakredito komiteti aqtiv-pasivebis marTvis komiteti proeqtebis marTvis  da ganviTarebis komiteti

centraluri sacavi

sainkasacio jgufi

dilingisa da bankTaSorisi
sesxebis ganyofileba

naRdi fuladi saxsrebis da
faseulobebis ganyofileba

saarqivo ganyofileba

samarTlebrivi mxardaWeris ganyofileba

serviscentrebi

sainformacio serviscentri

problemuri da vadagadacilebuli
sesxebis ganyofileba

Deputy CEO Corporate Banking

Corporate Department

International Relations Department

Financial Analysis and Documental
 Operations Departmen

aqcionerTa kreba

sameTvalyureo sabWo

Sida auditi

direqtorati

auditis komiteti

samdivno

riskebis marTvis komiteti

Supervisory Board

Internal Audit

Board of Directors

Risk Management CommitteeInternal Audit Committee

Secretariat

Shareholders Meeting

Deputy CEO Retail Banking Director General
Deputy CEO IT and Risk Management

Deputy CEO, CFO 

Human Resource Management Department Risk Management Department 
Treasury Department

Sales and Personal Service Department

Public Relations Department Corporate and Retail Lending Department
Dealing Department

Product Development and Marketing Department 

Cash and Valuables Management
 Department

Central Depositary

Collecting Unit

SME Department

Quality Control Department Legal Department Financial Monitoring Department 

Branch Network Development
 Department

Service Centers

Call Center

Legal Support Department

Archive Department

Programming Department 

IT Support Department 

 Problem and Overdue Loan Department

 Accounting Department

Budgeting and Planning Department

Financial Reporting Department 

Operations Management and Settlement 
Department 

Logistics Department

Credit Committee Assets-Liability Management Committee  Project Management and Development Committee

Committees

organizaciuli mowyobis axali modeli
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ZiriTadi mimarTulebebi

axali organizaciuli struqturis danergvis Semdeg , `bazisbankis~ 

mmarTvelobiTi struqtura oTx ZiriTad mimarTulebad daiyo.

sacalo  mimarTuleba

korporaciuli  mimarTuleba

informaciuli  teqnologiebisa da  riskebis  marTvis  mimarTuleba

finansebi

THE KEY TRENDS

ACCORDING TO THE NEW ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE THE BASISBANK

MANAGEMENT HAS SPLIT INTO FOUR MAIN DIRECTIONS:

RETAIL BANKING

CORPORATE BANKING

IT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

FINANCES
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`bazisbankis~ mudmivi orientiric klientTa momsaxurebis srulyofa ,  maTi interesebis dacva da sabanko 

momsaxurebis  progresuli  formebis  danergvaa. 

`bazisbankma~ ,  uwinares  yovlisa , Tavis momxmarebelze izruna da anabrebze saprocento 

ganakveTebi gazarda.

`bazisbankma~ kidev erTi axali sabanko produqti – 

sasargeblo  anabari _ SesTavaza  momxmarebels. 

sacalo mimarTuleba bankis umniSvnelovanes sferoebs moicavs. sabanko biznesis safuZveli aris 

klienti da bankis warmatebasac klientis moTxovnaTa sruli dakmayofileba ganapirobebs. Sesabamisad ,

`bazisbankis~ mudmivi orientiric klientTa momsaxurebis srulyofa ,  maTi interesebis dacva da sabanko 

momsaxurebis  progresuli  formebis  danergvaa. 

imisaTvis ,  rom uzrunvelyos  nebismieri klienti misi moTxovnis Sesabamisi sabanko 

momsaxurebiT da TiToeul maTgans Seuqmnas Tanabari pirobebi ,  `bazisbanki~ cdilobs ,  gaafarToos 

qseli da , SeZlebisdagvarad , pragmatulad ganalagos Tavisi serviscentrebi. klientis interesebis 

maqsimalurad gaTvaliswinebas da momsaxurebis xarisxis amaRlebis survils adasturebs ,  agreTve ,

mudmivi muSaoba axali sabanko produqtebis Seqmnisa  da  danergvis  mizniT. axal realobaSi ,

`bazisbankis~  sacalo  mimarTulebaSi am TvalsazrisiT xelSesaxebi  cvlilebebi  ganxorcielda. 

`bazisbankma~ ,  uwinares  yovlisa , Tavis momxmarebelze izruna da anabrebze saprocento 

ganakveTebi gazarda. am gadawyvetilebiT , bankis produqtebi _ vadiani , moTxovnamde , zrdadi ,

konvertirebadi da sabavSvo anabrebi ,  romlebsac ̀ bazisbanki~ Tavis klientebs sabanko bazarze arsebul 

produqtebs Soris saukeTeso pirobebiT sTavazobda ,  kidev ufro mimzidveli da sasargeblo gaxda. 

saprocento  ganakveTebis  gazrdasTan erTad ,  ̀ bazisbankma~ kidev erTi axali sabanko produqti – 

sasargeblo  anabari _ SesTavaza  momxmarebels. 

sasargeblo anabari _ es aris erTad Tavmoyrili yvela is sikeTe ,  romelic SeiZleba 

axasiaTebdes sabanko produqts. igi SesaZleblobas aZlevs meanabres ,  nebismieri TanxiT daiwyos 

dazogva; ar zRudavs mas Semdgomi minimaluri Senatanis moculobiT. anabarze daSvebulia operaciebis 

ganxorcieleba distanciuri bankingiTac da ,  rac mTavaria ,  danazogiT sargebloba nebismier dros aris 

SesaZlebeli. saboloo angariSiT ,  meanabre ,  maqsimalurad  xelsayrel  da  moqnil  pirobebTan  erTad ,

maRal saprocento ganakveTsac iRebs: larSi ganTavsebul  anabars  11%  daericxeba ,  aSS dolarSi  

ganTavsebuls – 7,25% ,  xolo  evrosa  da  girvanqa  sterlingSi  ganTavsebuls _ 6,25%.

sacalo mimarTuleba bankis umniSvnelovanes sferoebs moicavs. sabanko biznesis safuZveli aris 

klienti da bankis warmatebasac klientis moTxovnaTa sruli dakmayofileba ganapirobebs. Sesabamisad ,

`bazisbankis~ mudmivi orientiric klientTa momsaxurebis srulyofa ,  maTi interesebis dacva da sabanko 

momsaxurebis  progresuli  formebis  danergvaa. 

imisaTvis ,  rom uzrunvelyos  nebismieri klienti misi moTxovnis Sesabamisi sabanko 

momsaxurebiT da TiToeul maTgans Seuqmnas Tanabari pirobebi ,  `bazisbanki~ cdilobs ,  gaafarToos 

qseli da , SeZlebisdagvarad , pragmatulad ganalagos Tavisi serviscentrebi. klientis interesebis 

maqsimalurad gaTvaliswinebas da momsaxurebis xarisxis amaRlebis survils adasturebs ,  agreTve ,

mudmivi muSaoba axali sabanko produqtebis Seqmnisa  da  danergvis  mizniT. axal realobaSi ,

`bazisbankis~  sacalo  mimarTulebaSi am TvalsazrisiT xelSesaxebi  cvlilebebi  ganxorcielda. 

`bazisbankma~ ,  uwinares  yovlisa , Tavis momxmarebelze izruna da anabrebze saprocento 
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sacalo mimarTuleba

`pirvelive dRidan did mxardaWeras vgrZnobdi. aq damxvda mSvenieri garemo 

ganviTarebisa  da  profesiuli  winsvlisTvis. es  is  bankia, sadac  sakuTari  

SesaZleblobebis  maqsimaluri  realizeba  nebismier   TanamSromels   SeuZlia~.

levan  gardafxaZe,

sacalo  mimarTulebis  direqtori

daibada TbilisSi,  1983 wlis 17 ivniss. daamTavra komarovis saxelobis fizika-

maTematikuri skola. swavla ganagrZo saqarTvelos teqnikur universitetSi, Semdeg - 

Tbilisis ekonomikis, samarTlisa da informaciis saerTaSoriso universitetSi. aqvs 

ekonomistisa da iuristis kvalifikacia. daamTavra,  agreTve,  saqarTvelos universitetis 

finansebisa  da sabanko saqmis fakulteti biznesis marTvis magistris kvalifikaciiT. 

`bazisbankSi~ muSaoba 7  wlis  winaT,  jer  kidev  me-2 kursis  studentma,  daiwyo.

jer staJiori iyo, Semdeg-operatori, saerTaSoriso ganyofilebis menejeri,  

plastikuri baraTebis departamentis ufrosi,  proeqtebis marTvisa da ganviTarebis 

komitetis Tavmjdomare. yvela safexurze sanimuSo saqmiani Tvisebebi gamoavlina da 

`bazisbankis~ direqtoris  Tanamdeboba  daikava.
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`bazisbankis~ direqtoris  Tanamdeboba  daikava.

`pirvelive dRidan did mxardaWeras vgrZnobdi. aq damxvda mSvenieri garemo 
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Levan Gardapkhadze
Deputy CEO, Retail Banking

thLevan Gardapkhadze was born on 17  June 1983 in Tbilisi. Upon the 
graduation from Komarov School of Physics and Mathematics, he continued 
his studies at Technical University of Georgia, followed by Tbilisi International 
University of Economy, Law and Information where he acquired a qualification 
of economist and lawyer; he also graduated from the University of Georgia 
where he specialized in finances and banking and earned the MBA degree. 

Mr. Gardapkhadze was among those who entered their career in Basisbank as 
an ordinary employee. He was then the second year student. Starting as a 
Probationer, then an Operator, a Head of Plastic Cards Department, he was 
promoted to the position of the Chairman of Project Management and 
Development Committee. An educated and smart youth went toward the 
success with dignity, and his hierarchical development fairly led him to the 
position of Director.   

“From the very beginning I have felt a great support. I discovered a pleasant 
environment to get professionally grown. This is the bank where employees 
are given a chance to fulfill the maximum of their potential”.

To start with, Basisbank increased the deposit interest 
rates for the customers' benefit. This made the 
Basisbank products (Time Deposit, Demand Deposit, 
Increasing Savings Deposit, Convertible Time Deposit and 
Child Deposit) more attractive and useful. 

Furthermore, Basisbank introduced another new 
product – Useful Deposit. This particular deposit unites all 
the goodness of a bank product allowing a depositor to start 
saving with any amount of money with unlimited subsequent 
minimal installment required. Transactions are available via 
remote service. The depositor is eligible to access the 
deposit whenever desired. On the top of it, the customer 
benefits from flexible terms and conditions and, at the same 
time, earns high interest rates: 11% accrued to GEL 
deposits, 7.25 % to USD deposits, and 6.25 % to EUR and 
GBP deposits. 

Retail Banking covers the most important areas of the bank. This business is built on customers' loyalty and the overall 
success is totally based on the full satisfaction of customers' requirements. Therefore, the bank's main focus is on 
the service expansion, protection of the client interests and the introduction of progressive forms of the 
banking service.

In order to provide a high-quality service and equal conditions for the customers, Basisbank tries to expand the 
network and wisely arrange its service centers. The bank constantly works on initiating new banking products which 
shows that the customer interests and the quality of service are the first priority guidelines for Basisbank. In the new 
reality, substantial changes have been carried out in this respect.

Retail Banking



`bazisbankis~ erT-erTi  mTavari  prioriteti  mcire  da saSualo biznesis 

xelSewyobaa

2008  wels `bazisbankma~ am  mimarTulebiT  saqmianoba gaagrZela da momxmarebels SesTavaza 

axali sakredito  produqti  _  specialuri  sakredito  xazi  mcire  sawarmoebis  dasafinanseblad. 

mniSvnelovani prioritetia TanamSromloba  sxva  saerTaSoriso safinanso 

Tu kerZo sabanko  organizaciebTan.

korporaciuli mimarTuleba kompaniis erT-erTi wamyvani mimarTulebaa. am segmentSi muSavdeba 

korporaciul klientTa momsaxurebis xarisxisa da pirobebis gaumjobesebis gzebi ,  rac mniSvnelovnad 

ganapirobebs  zogadad  bankis  imijs.

mimarTulebis prioritetTa Soris aseve gansakuTrebuli yuradReba eqceva korporaciul 

klientebTan individualuri  midgomis  formaTa  SemuSavebas  maTi  biznesis  specifikis  

gaTvaliswinebiT. 

wlebis  ganmavlobaSi ,  ̀ bazisbankis~ erT-erTi  mTavari  prioriteti  mcire  da saSualo biznesis 

xelSewyobaa. amiT banks sagrZnobi wvlili Seaqvs samamulo warmoebis ganviTarebaSi ,  ris gareSec qveynis 

ekonomikuri  winsvla  SeuZlebelia.  amasTan ,  es  swored is sferoa ,  romlis farglebSi 

TanamSromlobis Sedegebmac mniSvnelovnad ganapiroba `bazisbanksa~ da EBRD-s Soris partnioruli 

urTierTobis  gaRrmavebis  survili.

2008  wels `bazisbankma~ am  mimarTulebiT  saqmianoba gaagrZela da momxmarebels SesTavaza 

axali sakredito  produqti  _  specialuri  sakredito  xazi  mcire  sawarmoebis  dasafinanseblad. 

axali produqti 500-dan 200 aTas laramde sesxebis gacemas iTvaliswinebs. sxva sasargeblo 

pirobebTan erTad ,  banki  mewarmes SeRavaTiani  periodiT  sargeblobasac sTavazobs. am  produqtis  

erT-erTi  mTavari  sikeTe ki  is  aris ,  rom sesxiT sargebloba ara marto ukve moqmed da gamocdil ,

aramed  damwyeb mewarmeebsac SeuZliaT. axlo  momavalSi  banki  Tavis  momxmarebels kvlav  SesTavazebs  

axal  sakredito  produqtebs.

 `bazisbankis~ aseve mniSvnelovani prioritetia TanamSromloba  sxva  saerTaSoriso safinanso 

Tu kerZo sabanko  organizaciebTan. ucxour kompaniebTan  aqtiuri  saqmiani kontaqtebis meSveobiT ,

dRiTi dRe izrdeba bankis  cnobadobis  xarisxi ,  misdami  ndoba  da interesi. yovelive amis Sedegad ki 

iqmneba xelsayreli pirobebi Rrma  partnioruli kavSirebis damyarebisa da ,  Sesabamisad ,  saWiroebis 

SemTxvevaSi ,  grZelvadiani saxsrebis miRebis TvalsazrisiTac. am TanamSromlobis erT-erTi mTavari 

mimarTulebaa , agreTve , adgilobrivi warmoebis ganviTarebis  xelSewyobis  mizniT  damatebiTi  

saxsrebis moZieba. `bazisbanki~ aqtiurad TanamSromlobs OPIC-Tan , Savi zRvis  vaWrobisa  da  

ganviTarebis  bankTan  da  sxva  saerTaSoriso  organizaciebTan. 
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korporaciuli mimarTuleba

 `mTavaria,  gqondes  mizani  da  yvelafers miaRwev. `bazisbankis~ warmatebis 

saidumlo is  gaxlavT,  rom  Cven  gvaqvs  ganviTarebis  swori  xedva da  gvyavs  ganaTlebuli  

da Zlieri  kadrebi,  romlebic  warmoadgenen  bankis birTvs. minda, yvela TanamSromels 

vusurvo, kidev  ufro  nayofierad  iSromon  da  miaRwion  TavianTi SesaZleblobebis 

maqsimums. `bazisbanki~ is adgilia, sadac yvela pirobaa  Seqmnili  ganviTarebisa  da  

karieruli  winsvlisaTvis~.

daviT  caava, 

korporaciuli  mimarTulebis  direqtori

daibada soxumSi. daamTavra  ivane javaxiSvilis  saxelobis  saxelmwifo  

universitetis ekonomikis  fakulteti,  specialobiT  finansebi, bankebi  da  dazRveva. 

`bazisbankSi~ muSaoba 2004 wels, sakredito oficris Tanamdebobaze daiwyo. codnis,  

mizanswrafulobisa da Sromismoyvareobis wyalobiT,  dRes ukve bankis direqtoris 

Tanamdeboba  ukavia.
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David Tsaava
Deputy CEO, Corporate Banking

Born in Sokhumi, David Tsaava graduated from Ivane Javakhishvili Tbilisi 
State University, specializing in finances, banking and insurance.

David Tsaava has been working for Basisbank since 2004. He started as a 
Credit Officer. Owing to his knowledge, commitment and hard work he now 
holds the position in the Board of Directors. 

”It is essential to have goals and ambitions to achieve success. The success 
secret of Basisbank lies in our correct vision of development and in our 
educated and highly-qualified staff.  I would wish all our employees to work 
hard using the maximum of their potential. Basisbank is the place where the 
excellent conditions are provided to develop and succeed in a career.”

 

In 2008, Basisbank allocated a new credit line for the small 
enterprises. The loans are offered in the range of 500 – 200,000 
GEL. In addition to a number of favorable terms, entrepreneurs can 
benefit from the provided grace period. Another advantage of this 
product is that the loan can be obtained not only by active and 
experienced businessmen, but by the beginners as well. In the 
nearest future, the bank plans to offer more credit products to ensure 
the creation of the diversified and quality loan portfolio fitting the 
financial needs of the SMEs.
 
Basisbank actively cooperates with international financial 
organizations and privately owned banks. Through effective 
business relationships with foreign companies, Basisbank has 
gained the growing interest and confidence. This plays an important 
part in deepening partnership contacts and obtaining long-term 
credits when required. Basisbank's role is also remarkable in 
promoting local manufacturing by attracting additional funds. 

Basisbank actively cooperates with the Overseas Private 
Investment Corporation, the Black Sea Trade and Development 
Bank and other international organizations. 

Corporate banking is one of the leading trends for the company. Exactly this segment makes a comprehensive study of 
the ways of improving service quality and terms for corporate customers, finally serving to define the overall image of 
the bank.

Among the priorities, much attention is paid to the individual approaches to the bank's corporate clients with 
the consideration of their business peculiarities. For many years, the main focus of Basisbank has been support of 
SME sector, thus contributing to the development of national production that is so important for the economic progress 
of the country. Moreover, cooperation between the EBRD and Basisbank set out in this particular sphere and the most 
positive results of this partnership stipulated the further strengthening of the business relationships.

Corporate Banking



am gundis damsaxurebaa bankSi iseTi mowinave teqnologiebis danergva ,  rogoric aris 

distanciuri sabanko momsaxureba.

informaciuli teqnologiebisa da riskebis marTvis calke mimarTulebad gamoyofa `bazisbankSi~ 

ganxorcielebuli struqturuli reorganizaciis erT-erTi mniSvnelovani Sedegia. am cvlilebis mizani  

bankis  saimedoobisa  da  daculobisaTvis  damatebiTi  da  ufro  myari  meqanizmebis Seqmna iyo. 

amgvari meqanizmebis saWiroebas is mudmivad cvalebadi da naklebad prognozirebadi garemo 

ganapirobebs ,  romelSic uxdeba saqmianoba nebismier biznesstruqturas. Cven  garSemo mimdinare Sida Tu 

globaluri masStabis  movlenebi ,  romelTa Sedegebis winaswar ganWvreta sakmaod rTuli amocanaa ,

naTlad  adasturebs  bankSi  SesaZlo  riskebis  drouli prevenciisa  da  gonivruli  marTvis  

mniSvnelobas. 

riskebis marTvis gundi mWidrod TanamSromlobs sacalo da korporaciul mimarTulebebTan. am 

TanamSromlobis Sedegad ,  `bazisbanki~ ,  erTi mxriv , Cveulebisamebr agrZelebs klientebis maRali 

xarisxiT momsaxurebas da maTTvis axali produqtebis SeTavazebas ,  meore mxriv ki ,  sagrZnoblad daculia 

gauTvaliswinebeli movlenebisagan ,  spontanuri ,  riskisa da xifaTis Semcveli nabijebisagan. riskebis 

marTvis gundi uzrunvelyofs , rom bankis menejmentma nebismier SemTxvevaSi zedmiwevniT awonil-

dawonili  da  pragmatuli  gadawyvetilebebi  miiRos.

axali mimarTulebis kompetenciaSi Sedis ,  aseve , informaciuli teqnologiebis ganviTareba. 

swored am gundis damsaxurebaa bankSi iseTi mowinave teqnologiebis danergva ,  rogoric aris 

distanciuri sabanko momsaxureba. amJamad mimarTulebis specialistebi distanciuri momsaxurebis 

sistemebis kidev ufro daxvewasa da ganviTarebas gegmaven. Tanamedrove ,  uaxlesi teqnologiebis  

danergva kidev ufro gaaumjobesebs  ̀ bazisbankis~  produqtebiT  sargeblobis  formebs.
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danergva kidev ufro gaaumjobesebs  ̀ bazisbankis~  produqtebiT  sargeblobis  formebs.
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informaciuli teqnologiebisa 

da riskebis marTva

`am  bankSi  Seqmnilia  garemo, romelic  mondomebul  da  ganaTlebul 

adamians  winsvlis  Sanss  aZlevs. 

warmatebis umniSvnelovanesi  faqtoria, rom  gundi  SeTanxmebulad  da  

megobrulad  muSaobdes.

15  wlis  ganmavlobaSi  `bazisbankma~ SeZlo,  daemkvidrebina Zlieri da 

saimedo bankis  saxeli,  afinansebs  uamrav saintereso proeqts da amiT qveynis 

ekonomikur  ganviTarebaSi  sakuTari  wvlili  Seaqvs. 

Cveni  warmatebis  saidumlo  klientTan megobruli urTierTobaa. yvela 

maTgans  individualurad  vudgebiT, personalur  momsaxurebas  vTavazobT~.

daviT  kakabaZe,

informaciuli  teqnologiebisa  da 

riskebis  marTvis  direqtori

daibada  baTumSi,  1982  wlis  7  seqtembers.  daamTavra  Tbilisis  61-e 

saSualo skola da swavla teqnikur universitetSi, qimia-biologiis sainJinro  

fakultetze, ganagrZo. `bazisbankSi~ muSaoba  2003  wlis  TebervalSi,  programistis  

Tanamdebobaze  daiwyo.
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22

The team of Risk Management Division 
closely cooperates with Retail and 
Corporate Divisions ensuring high-quality 
service and introduction of new products 
in the marketplace. It is the Risk 
Management team to secure coherent and 
rational decision-making by the bank 
governance. 

It is in the competence of the new division to 
develop information technologies. The 
launch of remote banking service is one of 
the successful projects. The team actively 
works on further development of the existing 
system using the most up-to-date 
technologies. 

David Kakabadze
Deputy CEO, IT and Risk Management

thBorn on 7  September 1982 in Batumi, David Kakabadze finished the 
secondary school # 61 in Tbilisi and continued his studies at Chemical-
Biology Engineering Faculty of the Georgian Technical University. He started 
his career in Basisbank in February 2003 as a programmer. 

“Here in Basisbank there is an opportunity to show your skills and you will be 
seen in proper perspectives. It is of utmost importance that the team members 
work in coordination and friendship. 

For 15 years of history, Basisbank has succeeded in acquiring a label of a 
strong and useful bank funding a variety of attractive projects and thus 
contributing into economic development of the country. The success of 
Basisbank lies in its friendly and tête-à-tête relationships with the clients”.

The establishment of IT and Risk Management as a separate division is one of the important outcomes of the structural 
reorganization carried out within Basisbank. These changes aimed at creating better mechanism for confidence and 
defense of the bank.

Introduction of additional tools was necessitated by unsteady business environment and ongoing domestic and global 
scale events. It is very important to promptly identify and measure feasible risks that generally are difficult to forecast. 

IT and Risk Management
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finansebi

`bazisbanki~ nabij-nabij  izrdeboda  da  viTardeboda. SeiZleba iTqvas,  

rom  bankis  aRorZinebisa  da ganviTarebis  monawile  var. 

yvelaze mniSvnelovania,  Camoayalibo profesionalTa gundi, romelic 

gansazRvravs momavalSi bankis warmatebas. Cveni mTavari sazrunavi is aris,  rom bankis 

muSaobam  maqsimaluri  sargebeli  mogvces  yvelas - bankis  mflobelebs,  

TanamSromlebsa  da  momxmareblebs.~ 

lia aslanikaSvili,

finansuri direqtori

daibada TbilisSi,  1976 wlis 17 Tebervals. 130-e saSualo skolis 

damTavrebis Semdeg, swavla ivane javaxiSvilis saxelobis saxelmwifo universitetSi, 

ekonomikis  fakultetis  ekonomikuri  urTierTobebis  specialobaze,  ganagrZo.

bankSi  1999  wlis  seqtemberSi,  saangariSsworebo  ganyofilebaSi 

gamocxadebuli vakansiis safuZvelze movida. ganacxadi ganixiles, samsaxurSi miiRes  

da dRes,  aTi wlis Tavze,  direqtoris Tanamdeboba ukavia.

`bazisbanki~ nabij-nabij  izrdeboda  da  viTardeboda. SeiZleba iTqvas,  

rom  bankis  aRorZinebisa  da ganviTarebis  monawile  var. 

yvelaze mniSvnelovania,  Camoayalibo profesionalTa gundi, romelic 

gansazRvravs momavalSi bankis warmatebas. Cveni mTavari sazrunavi is aris,  rom bankis 

muSaobam  maqsimaluri  sargebeli  mogvces  yvelas - bankis  mflobelebs,  

TanamSromlebsa  da  momxmareblebs.~ 

lia aslanikaSvili,

finansuri direqtori

daibada TbilisSi,  1976 wlis 17 Tebervals. 130-e saSualo skolis 

damTavrebis Semdeg, swavla ivane javaxiSvilis saxelobis saxelmwifo universitetSi, 

ekonomikis  fakultetis  ekonomikuri  urTierTobebis  specialobaze,  ganagrZo.

bankSi  1999  wlis  seqtemberSi,  saangariSsworebo  ganyofilebaSi 

gamocxadebuli vakansiis safuZvelze movida. ganacxadi ganixiles, samsaxurSi miiRes  

da dRes,  aTi wlis Tavze,  direqtoris Tanamdeboba ukavia.

`bazisbanki~ nabij-nabij  izrdeboda  da  viTardeboda. SeiZleba iTqvas,  

rom  bankis  aRorZinebisa  da ganviTarebis  monawile  var. 

yvelaze mniSvnelovania,  Camoayalibo profesionalTa gundi, romelic 

gansazRvravs momavalSi bankis warmatebas. Cveni mTavari sazrunavi is aris,  rom bankis 

muSaobam  maqsimaluri  sargebeli  mogvces  yvelas - bankis  mflobelebs,  

TanamSromlebsa  da  momxmareblebs.~ 

finansuri bloki bankis erT-erTi strategiuli funqciuri erTeulia. misi calke gamoyofa 

ukavSirdeba 2008 wels bankSi ganxorcielebul struqturul reorganizacias , romlis mizani bankis 

saqmianobis optimizacia da korporaciuli marTvis efeqtianobis gazrda iyo. finansuri blokis amocana 

bankis  finansuri  da  saoperacio  marTvaa. 

am mxriv gansakuTrebuli roli ekisreba bankis saxazino departaments ,  romelic optimalurad 

gankargavs bankis fulad resursebs ,  uzrunvelyofs bankis strategiuli gadawyvetilebebis Sesrulebas.  

saxazino departamenti axorcielebs bankis saxazino da savaluto  saxsrebis  marTva-gadanawilebas ,  

gegmavs  da  asrulebs  sainvesticio  saqmianobas.

blokSi Semavali calke struqturuli erTeulia operaciebis marTvisa da angariSsworebis 

ganyofileba. mas ,  bankis saqmianobisa da op?raciebis  efeqtiani marTvis uzrunvelsayofad ,  mTlianad 

gadaeca saoperacio da saangariSsworebo funqcia. es ganyofileba axorcielebs bankis sacalo da 

korporaciuli  mimarTulebebis  saoperacio  mxardaWeras. 

finansur blokSi Sedis , agreTve , aRricxva-angariSgebisa da dagegmvisa da biujetirebis 

ganyofilebebi. isini aanalizeben bankis saqmianobis finansur Sedegebs , axorcieleben dasaxuli 

gegmebisa da miznebis kontrols. amave ganyofilebebis  movaleobebSi  Sedis  grZelvadiani 

strategiuli  ganviTarebis  gegmebis  Sejereba  da  analizi.
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Lia Aslanikashvili 
Deputy CEO, Chief Financial Officer

thLia Aslanikashvili was born on 17  February 1976 in Tbilisi. After finishing the 
secondary school # 130, she continued studies at the Faculty of Economy at 
Ivane Javakhishvili Tbilisi State University specializing in economic 
relationships.

She joined Basisbank in September, 1999 being hired to fill the vacant 
position in the calculating department. After 10 years of experience, she now 
occupies the position of Director.

“Basisbank went towards success by gradual development and growth, and I 
am proud I have been the part of this entire process.
    
The most important task is to build up a team of professionals that will 
determine greater success of the bank. Our major concern is that the bank 
performance allows the maximum benefits to all - owners, bank personnel and 
customers”. 

The Settlement Department is the sub-division of the 
Finance Department. It is focused on operational and 
settlement duties to ensure efficiency of the banking 
activities. It also supports Retail and Corporate Banking 
Departments. 

There are sub-divisions of Reporting, Planning and 
Budgeting which make the assessment of financial 
outcomes of the banking activities and control the 
accomplished tasks and plans. They are also involved in 
study and drawing up of the long-term strategic 
development plans.   

The Division of Finances is one of the strategic units of the bank. It was created under the restructuring strategy to 
achieve maximum efficiency in corporate governance and full advantage of the banking activities. The major task of 
this division includes the financial and operating organization. In this respect, the role of the Treasury Department is 
very important. Primary functions of this department involve optimal management of finances, realization of strategic 
decisions of the bank, allocation of the budgetary and currency resources, planning and implementation of the 
investment activities. 

Finances
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`bazisbankma~ krizisis pirobebSi situaciis 

uSecdomod  marTvis  TvalsaCino  magaliTi  Seqmna:  qveyanaSi  saomari  moqmedebebis  drosac ki ,  arc 

erTi saaTiT ar Seferxebula sabanko operaciebi ,  klientebi ,  Cveulebisamebr ,  mSvid da keTilmosurne 

garemoSi iRebdnen profesiul da xarisxian momsaxurebas...

bankis ganviTareba warmoudgenelia stabiluri klienturis gareSe. stabiluri ki is klienturaa ,

romelsac ukve daugrovda ama Tu im bankTan TanamSromlobis garkveuli gamocdileba da kvlav mis 

momsaxurebas  amjobinebs.  es nebismieri bankisTvis saukeTeso daxasiaTebaa ,  radgan mianiSnebs ,  rom man 

moipova  yvelaze  mTavari  _  Tavisi  klientebis  ndoba.  

swored  ndobaa  banksa da klients Soris ,  iseve rogorc yvela saxis urTierTobaSi ,  erT-erTi 

umTavresi da umniSvnelovanesi monapovari. wlebis ganmavlobaSi qarTulma sabanko sistemam miaRwia 

stabilurobis im niSnuls ,  romelmac sakmaod gaamyara sazogadoebasa da bankebs Soris mravalmxrivi da 

mravalfunqciuri  urTierTobis safuZveli. `bazisbanki~ am  TvalsazrisiTac  mudmivad  mowinave  

poziciebzea ,  radganac klientebTan  misi urTierTobis  ganmsazRvreli  principi  swored  ndobis  

gamarTleba  da  maRali  xarisxis  momsaxurebaa. 

Tumca ,  2008 wels Seqmnilma obieqturma garemoebebma qarTuli sabanko sistema uaRresad mZime 

gamocdis winaSe daayena. sakmaod maRali niSnulis mqone ekonomikuri winsvlis fonze , agvistoSi 

ganviTarebulma movlenebma qarTul sabanko sistemaSi  sakmaod mZime  ryevebi gamoiwvia. gazrdili 

riskebis fonze ,  viTareba  gansakuTrebiT  daamZima  msoflioSi  gavrcelebulma  finansur-ekonomikurma  

krizisma.

am viTarebaSi Seqmnili erTgvari panikis fonze , `bazisbankma~ krizisis pirobebSi situaciis 

uSecdomod  marTvis  TvalsaCino  magaliTi  Seqmna:  qveyanaSi  saomari  moqmedebebis  drosac ki ,  arc 

erTi saaTiT ar Seferxebula sabanko operaciebi ,  klientebi ,  Cveulebisamebr ,  mSvid da keTilmosurne 

garemoSi iRebdnen profesiul da xarisxian momsaxurebas... bankis TiToeulma TanamSromelma gamoavlina 

maRali pasuxismgeblobis  Segneba  da  kritikul  viTarebaSi am pasuxismgeblobiT moqmedebis unari. dRes ,  

am garemoebaTa  fonze ,  `bazisbanki~ amayobs ,  rom ,  krizisis pirobebSi ,  upirobod Seasrula mis mier 

deklarirebuli  misia TanamSromelTa uflebebis dacvis  Taobaze da uklebliv  yvela  maTgani  

SeinarCuna.  amgvarad ,   man  saqmiT  daamtkica ,  rom  afasebs  da  bankis  winsvlaSi udides rols 

miakuTvnebs  Tavis  personals ,   mis kompetenturobasa  da  gamocdilebas. 

 

im periodis dinamikis gaanalizebam cxadyo ,  rom ,  ̀ bazisbankis~ gonivruli  da  jansaRi menejmentis 

wyalobiT ,   bankis  mimarT  klientebis  ndobis  xarisxi  odnavadac  ki  ar  Semcirebula. 

am garemoebebis gaTvaliswinebiT ,  `bazisbankma~ ucvlelad SeinarCuna saerTaSoriso sareitingo 

kompania “Fitch Ratings”-is  mier  miniWebuli  grZelvadiani  reitingis  prognozi   ̀ stabiluri~. 

  

stabiluri banki
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It is impossible to achieve success without stable clientele. A stable clientele is a group of “satisfied” 

customers who gives preference to a particular bank, becomes loyal and faithful to it. This means that the 

bank enjoys customers' confidence and it is the best reference for any operating bank. 

Confidence is one of the major achievements in all kind of relationships, especially between the bank and 

the client. For many years, the banking system in Georgia has reached the point of stability which has 

fairly improved the social attitude towards the banks. Basisbank is among the first to enjoy the public 

confidence due to the high quality service provided. 

However, the harsh economic reality in 2008 turned out to be a serious and the most difficult challenge for 

the banking system in Georgia. In the light of high economic progress, August events caused instability 

and fluctuations in the banking sector, the situation further deteriorated by the outputs of the ongoing 

global crisis.

In the conditions of crisis, when a panic was dominating around, Basisbank showed a 

remarkable example of faultless management. Even during the war period the bank continued 

operating in a usually quiet and healthy atmosphere. Each of the staff demonstrated high sense of 

responsibility and capability to work under pressure. Today, in the terms of these circumstances, 

Basisbank is proud to fulfill its mission protecting the rights of employees and maintaining the total staff. 

Basisbank once again proved that it appreciates and respects the  competence and expertise of its 

personnel.

Analysis of the dynamics revealed that Basisbank retained the high quality of confidence thanks to the 

proper and strong management.

In the light of the above-mentioned factors, Basisbank maintained the long-term rating forecast of being 

“Stable” assigned by Fitch Ratings, an international agency.

A STABLE BANK
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ratom  vsargeblob ̀ bazisbankis~ momsaxurebiT?  spontanuri pasuxi  Zalian martivia:  imitom ,

15  weli sakmarisi droa imisaTvis , rom daimkvidro Seni adgili biznesSi da daamtkico Seni 

siZliere.  mimaCnia ,  rom  ̀ bazisbanki~  swored  aseTi  kompaniaa:  Zlieri ,  Rirseuli ,  warmatebuli. 

`bazisbanki~ da Cven araerTxel aRmovCndiT partniorebi da Tanamoazreebi xelovnebis samsaxurSi. 

didi madlierebiT vixseneb `bazisbankis~ uangaro ,  araerTgzis Tanadgomas Tbilisis klasikuri musikis 

festivalis ,  `Semodgomis Tbilisis~ ,  organizebasa da gamarTvaSi. qarTuli kulturis saganZuri 

aTaswleulebis monapovaria , romelsac gafrTxileba da Semdgomi ganviTarebisTvis xelSewyoba 

sWirdeba. xelovnebas ,  kulturas biznesi unda amoudges mxarSi.  

    madlobas vuxdi `bazisbanks~ gaweuli TanadgomisTvis. banki uamrav karg proeqts afinansebs. 

vusurveb ,  momavalSic  Seesxas  xorci  rac  SeiZleba  meti  saintereso  wamowyebisTvis ,  romelic  

qarTul  saqmes  gamoadgeba. 

Zlieri , Rirseuli , warmatebuli

vaxtang kaxiZe
musikosi

Strong, Worthy, Successful

Vakhtang Kakhidze
Musician 

What is the reason I am faithful to Basisbank? Simply, Djansug Kakhidze, my father used to cooperate with this bank. 

15 year term is enough time to obtain a firm foothold in business and affirm your strength. I see Basisbank exactly as a 
strong, worthy, and successful company.

We have often shared the same views and it consequently led to our manifold partnerships in the sphere of art. We 
have enjoyed Basisbank's unbiased and regular support to the Classical Music Festival “Autumn Tbilisi” for which we 
are very grateful. The treasury of the Georgian culture is the achievement of the millenniums. It requires special care 
and promotion. Today, business support is vital for art and culture.

I extend my sincere gratitude to Basisbank for the rendered support. I have witnessed a number of good projects 
funded by Basisbank and I wish them many public projects to serve for the common good in Georgia.

 rom mamaCemi ,  jansuR kaxiZe ,  sargeblobda  am  bankiT. 

CUSTOMERS ABOUT THEIR FAVORITE BANK

klientebi rCeuli bankis Sesaxeb
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12 welia ,  rac ̀ Telavis Rvinis marani~ ̀ bazisbankTan~ TanamSromlobs.  es  dro Tavad metyvelebs ,  

Tu ramdenad myari safuZveli aqvs Cvens Soris Camoyalibebul saqmian urTierTobas. gadauWarbeblad 

SeiZleba iTqvas ,  rom `bazisbanks~ didi wvlili miuZRvis Cveni kompaniis ganviTarebasa da warmatebaSi. 

misi saxiT ,  ̀ Telavis Rvinis marans~  nebismier  viTarebaSi  gverdSi  saimedo  partniori  da  megobari  

udgas. 

`bazisbankTan~ urTierToba  Zalze  komfortulia. is Cven problemebis martivad  gadawyvetaSi  

gvexmareba ,  urTulesi  sakiTxis  mogvarebac ki  telefonis  zariT  aris  SesaZlebeli. 

vafasebT  da vufrTxildebiT bankis menejmentTan Tbil da megobrul damokidebulebas ,  romelic am 

wlebis  ganmavlobaSi  Camoyalibda  da  ganmtkicda.

saimedo partniori da megobari

zurab ramazaSvili
`Telavis Rvinis marani~

A Reliable Partner and a Friend

Zurab Ramazashvili
Telavi Wine Cellar

Telavi Wine Cellar and Basisbank count 12 years of cooperation. This period shows how ground and solid our business 

relations are. It is no exaggeration to admit that Basisbank has made a great contribution to the development and 

success of our company. Basisbank is our reliable partner and a friend who is always there to help. 

Basisbank makes business relationships comfortable suggesting easy solutions to our problems. By a simple phone 

call the most serious difficulties can be settled.

We do respect and appreciate our warm and friendly relations with the bank management, which has so much 

developed and strengthened over the years.

CUSTOMERS ABOUT THEIR FAVORITE BANK

klientebi rCeuli bankis Sesaxeb



A Stable, Distinguished Partner

Giorgi Pataridze 

Director of Development and Reforms Foundation

The Development and Reforms Foundation has been cooperating with Basisbank for about 5 years. When seeking for 

a partner, one always tries to select a stable, successful and distinct company. I found Basisbank exactly in this light. 

Today, we refer to Basisbank not only for the banking services, but to our business partner in a number of joint projects. 

Currently, together we support students who wish to continue their studies at the world's leading universities. Each 

year we sponsor the Master's degrees for the youth. Although, the students still need some additional funds to cover 

living expenses abroad. Therefore, Basisbank offers attractive and advantageous loan terms. 

I would like to wish Basisbank further success, development and many interesting projects in future.
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giorgi patariZe
ganviTarebisa da reformebis fondi 

ganviTarebisa da reformebis fondi `bazisbankTan~ mexuTe welia TanamSromlobs. rodesac 

partniors eZeb , cdilob stabiluri , warmatebuli , gamorCeuli kompania airCio. swored aseTia 

`bazisbanki~. dRes igi Cveni ara marto momsaxure  banki ,  aramed partnioricaa ,  romelTan  erTadac  

sasargeblo  proeqtebi  gvaqvs  ganxorcielebuli.  

amJamad ,  vcdilobT ,  xeli SevuwyoT studentebs msoflios prestiJul universitetebSi swavlis 

gagrZelebaSi. fondi yovelwliurad afinansebs samagistro kursze swavlis msurvelebs. Tumca ,

studentebs ,  romelTac granti moipoves ,  sWirdebaT damatebiTi saxsrebi sazRvargareT cxovrebisaTvis. 

amisaTvis ̀ bazisbanki~ maT sTavazobs xelsayrel pirobebs – grZelvadian  sesxs  uprecedentod  dabali  

saprocento  ganakveTiT. 

minda ,  banks ,  mis xelmZRvanelobas ,  TiToeul TanamSromels ,  vusurvo warmateba ,  ganviTareba da  

bevri  saintereso  proeqtis  ganxorcieleba. 

stabiluri da gamorCeuli  

CUSTOMERS ABOUT THEIR FAVORITE BANK
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`bazisbankiT~ Cveni daintereseba misma imijma ganapiroba. `bazisbanki~ saqarTveloSi arsebul 

bankebs Soris erT-erTi yvelaze stabilurad mzardi ,  xelmisawvdomi da sando bankia. swored es gaxda  

`bazisbankTan~  Cveni  TanamSromlobis   mizezi. 

`bazisbankis~ gansakuTrebulobas misi inovaciuri midgomebi ,  maRali  donis  servisi ,  

mravalferovani sabanko produqtebi ,  moqnili  pirobebi  da ,  rac mTavaria ,  kvalificiuri  kadrebi  

ganapirobebs. 

SarSan , `bazisbankTan~ erTad , SevqmeniT sastipendio fondi , `saqarTvelos universitetis~ 

warCinebuli studentebisaTvis. samomavlod , kidev ramdenime proeqtis  ganxilvas vgegmavT da 

darwmunebulebi  varT ,  rom  Cveni  TanamSromloba  kvlavac  warmatebuli  iqneba. 

`saqarTvelos universitetis~ saxeliT ,  `bazisbanks~ stabilur ganviTarebas ,  gafarToebas ,  

qarTul  sabanko  seqtorSi  liderobas  da  misi  momsaxurebiT  kmayofil  momxmarebels  vusurveb.

Stably Growing, Accessible and Reliable 

Manana Sanadze 
The University of Georgia 

Our interest in Basisbank has been stipulated by its image. Among the Georgian banks, Basisbank is one of the most 
stably growing, accessible and reliable banks. Particularly, this became the incentive for our cooperation with 
Basisbank.

The exclusiveness of this bank is in its innovative approaches, high-quality service, variety of bank products, flexible 
conditions and, the most important, in highly qualified personnel. 

The joint project that we initiated together with Basisbank last year was the Student Allowance Fund created in favor of 
the outstanding students of the University of Georgia. We plan more mutual projects in future, and we are confident that 
our partnership will have a successful continuation as ever before.
  
On behalf of the University of Georgia I wish Basisbank steady development and the leading position in the Georgian 
bank sector. May you never lose the satisfaction of your customers.

mudmivad mzardi , xelmisawvdomi da sando

manana sanaZe
`saqarTvelos universiteti~
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`bazisbankis~ momxmarebeli maSin gavxdi ,  rodesac `megobaraTis~ prezentaciaze mimiwvies. maCuqes  

baraTi ,  romelzec ukve amobeWdili  iyo  Cemi saxeli  da gvari ,  ramac  Zalian  gamaxara. vizualuradac  

momwons ,  radgan  Cemi sayvareli  ferebiTaa gawyobili. ase daiwyo  Cemi  da ̀ bazisbankis~ urTierToba da 

mas Semdeg mxolod am bankis momsaxurebiT vsargeblob. maqvs  Cemi  sakredito Tanxa ,  romelsac Zalian  bevr 

situaciaSi `gadavurCenivar~. `bazisbankma~ sabanko  sistemasTan  damaaxlova. banki ,  finansebi ,  gadaricxva ,

krediti _ es  sfero  ucxoa  CemTvis. es kargad gaiTavises `bazisbankis~ TanamSromlebma  da TviTon 

matyobineben ,  rodis  ra unda gavakeTo.

CemTvis  Zalian  mniSvnelovania  xarisxi  da  momsaxurebis  maRali  standarti. `bazisbankSi~ 

swored  aseTi  standartia  damkvidrebuli  da  igi  srulad  akmayofilebs  am  moTxovnas. 

vusurveb  Cems  rCeul  banks  ganviTarebas ,   gafarToebasa  da  winsvlas!

Through Basisbank I Got Acquainted with the Banking System

Liza Bagrationi
Singer

I have become a Basisbank client since I was invited to the presentation of their new product - “Megobarati” (friendly) credit 

card. This card already contained my name that pleased me so much. What I liked most, was its visual side designed in my 

favorite colors. This was the beginning of my relationship with Basisbank. Since then I remain faithful to it. The credit card 

saved me in many situations. Through Basisbank I got acquainted with the banking system in fact. To be honest, I find bank, 

finances, transactions, credits quite weird – feeling still uneasy with contemporary technologies. Taking account of my 

inexperience in this field, Basisbank staff is always helpful, regularly prompting when and what I need to do.  

As for me, the most important is the quality of the service provided. Basisbank fully meets this criterion.

I wish my chosen bank further development, expansion and progress.  

`bazisbankma~ sabanko sistemasTan damaaxlova

liza bagrationi
momRerali
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miRweuli Sedegebi

RESULTS ACHIEVED 
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miRweuli Sedegebi

2008 wels `bazisbankis~ mTliani aqtivebis moculobam 111,308 aTasi lari Seadgina ,  rac wina welTan 
SedarebiT 8,332 aTasi lariT (8,09 %-iT) metia.
bankis likvidobis done maRalia. wlis bolos bankis likvidobis koeficienti (likviduri aqtivebi / 
mTlian aqtivebTan) Seadgenda  32,43%-s. es saSualebas aZlevs banks ,  iyos moqnili da srulad 
daakmayofilos klientebis moTxovnebi.
2008 wels ,  mniSvnelovnad gaizarda bankis valdebulebac. depozitarTa raodenobam wina welTan 
SedarebiT 30.67%-iT moimata.

aqtivebisa da valdebulebebis dinamika

mTliani valdebulebebi
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miRweuli Sedegebi

RESULTS ACHIEVED 

RESULTS ACHIEVED 

In 2008, the total volume of Basisbank assets reached GEL 111,308 thousands, which has increased by GEL 8,332 
thousands ( 8,09 %) over the previous year.
The bank has a high liquidity level with a liquidity ratio being 32,43%  (liquid assets / total assets) at the end of the year,  
ensuring the bank's flexibility and aptitude to fully meet the demands of the customers.  
In 2008, there was the growth in liabilites; the number of the depositors increased by 30.67% as compared to the last 
year.

Dynamics of Assets and Liabilities 

Total assets

Total liabilities 
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klientebze gacemuli sesxebi     

fuli da fuladi saxsrebi erovnul bankSi    

fuladi saxsrebi sxva bankebSi               

wminda materialuri da aramaterialuri aqtivebi

sxva aqtivebi

  57.08%

12.19%   

11.90%      

11.67%

7.17%

11.67%

7.17%

11.90%

12.19%

57.08%

klientebze gacemuli sesxebi     

fuli da fuladi saxsrebi erovnul bankSi    

fuladi saxsrebi sxva bankebSi               

wminda materialuri da aramaterialuri aqtivebi

sxva aqtivebi

aqtivebis struqtura

miRweuli Sedegebi
RESULTS ACHIEVED 

STRUCTURE OF ASSETS 

Loans to customers

Cash and balances with National Bank of Georgia

Placements with banks

Net tangible and intangible assets

Other assets 

Loans to customers

Cash and balances with National Bank of Georgia

Placements with banks

Net tangible and intangible assets

Other assets 
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maCveneblebis mixedviT ,  sakredito portfeli wina welTan SedarebiT 1.69%-iT gaizarda.
gacemuli sesxebidan ZiriTadi nawili modis fizikur pirebze. maTi moculoba mTliani portfelis  54.37%-s 
Seadgens. aqedan fizikur pirTa sakredito baraTebis wili 27.21%-ia.

sakredito portfelis struqtura

fizikuri pirebi

iuridiuli pirebi

54.37%

45.63%

mTliani portfeli (wminda)  63,531 

fizikuri pirebi 54.37%

iuridiuli pirebi 45.63%

miRweuli Sedegebi

RESULTS ACHIEVED 

According to the indicators, the credit portfolio increased by 1.69%.
The biggest share of the total volume of loans falls on retail and equals 54.37% of the total portfolio, out of which the share of 
individuals' credit cards ammounts to 27,21%. 

Individuals

Corporate

Total portfolio (net)

Individuals

Corporate

STRUCTURE OF LOANS PORTFOLIO 
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fizikuri pirebis portfelis struqtura

sul fizikuri pirebis portfeli (wminda)   34,541 

27.21% 

3.57% 

sakredito baraTebi

avto sesxebi

31.07% ipoTekuri sesxebi

38.14%  samomxmareblo sesxebi

38.14% 27.21% 

31.07% 

3.57% 

ipoTekuri sesxebi

 samomxmareblo sesxebi

sakredito baraTebi

avto sesxebi

miRweuli Sedegebi
RESULTS ACHIEVED 

STRUCTURE OF RETAIL LOAN PORTFOLIO

Total retail loan portfolio (net)

Credit cards

Auto loans

Mortgage loans 

Consumer loans 

Mortgage loans 

Consumer loans 

Credit cards

Auto loans
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sakredito portfelis dargobrivi struqtura

vaWroba da momsaxureba     

mSenebloba    

soflis meurneoba              

mrewveloba

energetika

  43.53%

30.22%

5.17%

14.78%

1.02%

transporti da kavSirgabmuloba

sxva 

2.18%

3.09%

sul iuridiuli pirebis portfeli (wminda) 28,990 

1.02%
14.78%

5.17%

30.22%

  43.53%

vaWroba da momsaxureba     

mSenebloba    

mrewveloba

soflis meurneoba              

energetika

miRweuli Sedegebi
RESULTS ACHIEVED 

STRUCTURE OF CREDIT PORTFOLIO BY SECTORS

Total corporate portfolio (net) 

Trade and services

Construction

Agriculture

Industry

Energy

Transportation and communication 

Other

Construction

Trade and services

Industry

Agriculture

Energy

2.18%
3.09%

transporti da kavSirgabmuloba

Transportation and communication 
sxva 
Other
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Semosavlebis struqtura

saprocento da arasaprocento Semosavlebi

saprocento Semosavlebi

sakomisio da sxva Semosavlebi gaweuli momsaxurebidan

sakonversio operaciebidan miRebuli Semosavali

sxva Semosavlebi

sul saprocento da arasaprocento Semosavlebi Seadgens 18,081 aTas lars.

18,081 

67.90% 

21.37% 

10.06% 

0.67% 

21.37% 

10.06% 0.67% 

67.90% 

saprocento Semosavlebi

sakomisio da sxva Semosavlebi 
gaweuli momsaxurebidan

sakonversio operaciebidan
miRebuli Semosavali

sxva Semosavlebi

miRweuli Sedegebi

arasaprocento Semosavlebis saxiT 2008 wels miRebulia 5,804  aTasi lari. sakomisio 
Semosavlis zrda mTliani Semosavlebis 67.90%–s Seadgens ,  rac ganapiroba axali 
klienturis mozidvam ,  axali sabanko produqtebis danergvam da momsaxurebis maRalma 
xarisxma.

RESULTS ACHIEVED 

Interest income and non-interest income in total equal GEL 18,081 thousands. 

STRUCTURE OF INCOME 

Interest income

Fee and commission income 

Interest income and non-interest income

Income from exchange operations 

Other income 

In 2008, non-interest income amounted to GEL 5,804 thousands. The growth of commission 
income ammounts to 67.90% of  total income. These results were stimulated by the growth in 
clientele, introduction of new banking products and a high quality service.

Interest income

Fee and commission income 

Income from exchange operations 

Other income 
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miRweuli Sedegebi

mTliani kapitalis dinamika

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

25, 000

20, 000

15, 000

10, 000

5, 000

0

9,487

11,420

15, 102

17, 508

22, 053

mTliani kapitalis dinamika

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

9, 487 11, 420 15, 102 17, 508 22, 053

RESULTS ACHIEVED 

TRENDS OF TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

Trends of total Shareholders' Equity 



40

damoukidebel auditorTa daskvna da 

konsolidirebuli finansuri angariSgeba

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT  AUDITORS  AND 

CONSOLIDATED FINANSIAL STATEMENTS



 

JSC BasisBank  

Financial Statements 

For the year ended 31 December 2008 
 
 
 
 
 



 

2 

Contents 
 
Independent Auditors’ Report .........................................................................................................3 
Income Statement ............................................................................................................................4 
Balance Sheet...................................................................................................................................5 
Statement of Cash Flows .................................................................................................................6 
Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity ...............................................................................7 
Notes to the Financial Statements...............................................................................................8-45 



    
Tbilisi Branch of KPMG CIS Limited Tel.  +995 (32) 935 713 
6 Khetagurov str. Fax  +995 (32) 982 276 
Tbilisi, 0102 Internet:  www.kpmg.com 
Georgia 

 
 

3 Tbilisi Branch of KPMG CIS Limited, a branch incorporated under 
the Laws of Georgia and a member firm of the KPMG network of 

independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International,  
a Swiss cooperative 

 

Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
To the Supervisory Board 
JSC BasisBank 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of JSC BasisBank (the “Bank”), which 
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2008, and the income statement, statement of 
changes in shareholders’ equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: 
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to 
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting 
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards 
require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting principles used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Bank as at 31 December 2008, and its financial performance and its cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. 
 
 
 
Tbilisi Branch of KPMG CIS Limited 
14 May 2008



JSC BasisBank 
Income Statement for the year ended 31 December 2008 

The income statement is to be read in conjunction with the Notes to, and forming part of, the financial statements.    
4 

 
Notes 

2008 
GEL’000 

 2007
GEL’000 

     
     
Interest income 4 12,277  10,389 
Interest expense 4 (5,414)  (3,887) 

Net interest income          6,863  6,502 
     
Fee and commission income 5         3,864   3,110 
Fee and commission expense 6       (1,205)  (710) 

Net fee and commission income  2,659  2,400 
     
Net foreign exchange income  7         1,819  1,632 
Other income/(expenses) 8            121   614 

  1,940  2,246 
     
Impairment (losses)/recoveries 9       (4,658)  127 
General administrative expenses 10       (9,169)  (6,628) 

     
(Loss)/income before taxes  (2,365)  4,647 
Income tax benefit/(expense) 11 411  (883) 

Net (loss)/income  (1,954)  3,764 

 
The financial statements as set out on pages 4 to 45 were approved by Management Board on                        
14 May 2008. 
 
 
 
 
Mr. Zurab Tsikhistavi  Lia Alsanikashvili 
General Director  Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
 
 
         
         
 

 



JSC BasisBank 
Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2008 

The balance sheet is to be read in conjunction with the Notes to, and forming part of, the financial statements.    
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 Notes 
2008 

GEL’000 
 2007

GEL’000 

     
ASSETS    

Cash          9,052   7,126
Due from the National Bank of Georgia 12         4,511   17,260
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 13       13,242   5,918
Loans to customers 14       63,531   62,476
Available-for-sale assets 15 54  -
Held-to-maturity investments     

- Held by the bank 16 122  -
- Pledged under sale and repurchase agreements 16 2,954  -
Property and equipment 17       12,833   8,986
Intangible assets             162   76
Other assets 18         4,847   1,134

Total Assets  111,308  102,976

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY    
Deposits and balances from banks and other financial 
institutions 19       22,553  

 14,251

Amounts payable under repurchase agreements 20         2,801  -
Current accounts and deposits from customers 21       62,045   69,635
Other liabilities 22         1,487  902
Deferred tax liability 23            369  680

Total Liabilities  89,255  85,468

Shareholders’ Equity    

Share capital 24         5,912  5,025
Share premium 24         5,612  -
Revaluation reserve for buildings          2,188  2,489
Retained earnings  8,341  9,994

Total Shareholders’ Equity  22,053  17,508

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity  111,308  102,976

     
Commitments and Contingencies 27-29    



JSC BasisBank 
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2008 

The statement of cash flows is to be read in conjunction with the Notes to, and forming part of, the financial statements. 
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Notes 

2008  
GEL’000  

 2007 
GEL’000  

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   
 

 
Interest and fee and commission receipts     15,691   13,559 
Interest and fee and commission payments     (6,457)  (4,694) 
Net receipts from foreign exchange       1,708   1,667 
Other income     221  719 
General administrative expenses     (8,184)  (5,818) 
     
(Increase)/decrease in operating assets     
Due from the National Bank of Georgia       3,060   1,085 
Placements with banks        (323)  1,595 
Loans to customers     (5,349)  (14,949) 
Available-for-sale assets and held-to-maturity investments     (3,073)  53 
Other assets        (602)  (100) 
     
Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities     
Deposits and balances from banks and other financial 
institutions       7,065  

 
10,334 

Amounts payable under repurchase agreements       2,801   - 
Current accounts and deposits from customers     (8,049)  8,875 
Other liabilities          917   (141) 

Net cash from operating activities before income tax paid  (574)  12,185 
Income tax paid  (598)  (612) 

Cash flows from operations  (1,172)  11,573 

     
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES     
Purchases of property and equipment  (5,512)  (2,054) 
Purchases of intangible assets  (111)  (3) 
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment  573  116 
Prepayments for property and equipment  (888)  (697) 

Cash flows from investing activities  (5,938)  (2,638) 

     
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES     
Proceeds from issuance of share capital          887   - 
Proceeds from share premium       5,612   - 
Dividends paid             -    (1,500) 

Cash flows from financing activities  6,499  (1,500) 
     
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents        (611)  7,435 
Effect of changes in exchange rates on cash and cash 
equivalents        (229) 

 
2,184 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year     23,057   13,438 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 31    22,217   23,057 



JSC BasisBank 
Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity for the year ended 31 December 2008 

 

The statement of changes in shareholders’ equity is to be read in conjunction with the Notes to, and forming part of, the financial 
statements.         
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 Share 
capital 

 
Share 

premium 

 Revaluation 
reserve for 

buildings   

 
Retained 
earnings 

 
Total 

 equity 
 GEL’000  GEL’000  GEL’000  GEL’000  GEL’000 

Balance at 1 January 2007  5,025  -  2,347  7,730  15,102 
Net income for the period -  -  -  3,764  3,764 
Deferred tax reversal due to change in 
income tax rate previously recognised in 
revaluation reserve for buildings -  

 
 

-  142  -  142 

Total recognised income and expense         3,906 
Dividends declared -  -  -  (1,500)   (1,500) 

Balance at 31 December 2007 5,025  -  2,489  9,994  17,508 
Net loss for the period -  -  -  (1,954)  (1,954) 
Realisation of property and equipment 
revaluation reserve on sale                -    -  

  
(301)              301   - 

Total recognised income and expense         (1,954) 
Shares issued             887                 -    -  -              887 
Share premium -           5,612  -  -           5,612 

Balance at 31 December 2008 5,912  5,612  2,188  8,341  22,053 
 



JSC BasisBank 
Notes to, and forming part of, the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008 
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1 Background 
 
Principal activities 
 
JSC BasisBank is a joint-stock bank, which was established in Georgia in 1993. The principal 
activities of the Bank are deposit taking and customer accounts maintenance, lending and issuing 
guarantees, cash and settlement operations and operations with securities and foreign exchange. 
The activities of the Bank are regulated by the Financial Supervisory Agency (“FSA”). The Bank 
has 18 branches operating in Georgia. 
 
The registered address of the Bank is Ketevan Tsamebuli 1, 0103, Tbilisi, Georgia. The majority 
of the Bank’s assets and liabilities are located in Georgia. The average number of people 
employed by the Bank during the year was 256 (2007: 200). 
 
Shareholders 
 
As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the following individuals owned the share capital of the Bank: 
 
Shareholders 2008

Ownership interest, 
% 

 2007
Ownership interest, 

% 
   

European Bank for Reconstruction and Development (EBRD) 15.00%  - 
Zurab Tsikhistavi 13.92%  16.36% 
Eldar Mildiani 9.89%  11.62% 
Zurab Nishnianidze 8.51%  10.00% 
Murman Ambroladze 6.58%  7.74% 
Archil Maziashvili 6.33%  7.44% 
Ketevan Soselia 5.62%  6.60% 
Taras Nijaradze 4.58%  5.38% 
Gia Petriashvili 4.57%  5.37% 
Ketevan Skhirtladze 4.44%  5.22% 
Goderzi Meladze 4.42%  5.19% 
Tengiz Maziashvili 4.38%  5.15% 
Other individuals 11.76%  13.93% 

100.00%  100.00% 

 
Related party transactions are detailed in Note 30. 
 
Georgian business environment 
 
Georgia has been experiencing political and economic change that has affected, and may continue 
to affect, the activities of enterprises operating in this environment. The recent conflict between 
Georgia and the Russian Federation has created additional uncertainty. Consequently, operations 
in Georgia involve risks that typically do not exist in other markets. In addition, the recent 
contraction in the capital and credit markets has further increased the level of economic 
uncertainty in the environment. The financial statements reflect management’s assessment of the 
impact of the Georgian business environment on the operations and the financial position of the 
Bank. The future business environment may differ from management’s assessment. 
 
 
 



JSC BasisBank 
Notes to, and forming part of, the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008 
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2 Basis of preparation 
 
Statement of compliance 
 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). 
 
Basis of measurement 
 
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except that available-for-sale 
assets are stated at fair value and buildings are stated at revalued amounts. 
 
Functional and presentation currency 
 
The national currency of Georgia is the Georgian Lari (“GEL”). Management has determined the 
Bank’s functional currency to be the GEL as it reflects the economic substance of the underlying 
events and circumstances of the Bank. The GEL is also the Bank’s presentation currency for the 
purposes of these financial statements. 
 
Financial information presented in GEL has been rounded to the nearest thousand. 
  
Use of estimates and judgments 
 
Management has made a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting of assets 
and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities to prepare these financial 
statements in conformity with IFRS. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments 
in applying accounting policies is described in the following note: 
 
• Loan impairment estimates - Note 14 
• Building revaluation estimates - Note 17  
 
 
3 Significant accounting policies 
 
The following significant accounting policies have been applied in the preparation of the financial 
statements. The accounting policies have been consistently applied changes in accounting policies 
are described at the end of this Note. 
 
Foreign currency transactions  
 
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the appropriate functional currency at the 
foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated to the functional 
currency at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies, which are stated at historical cost, are translated to the 
functional currency at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Foreign 
exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the income statement. 



JSC BasisBank 
Notes to, and forming part of, the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008 
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Cash and cash equivalents 
 
The Bank considers cash and nostro accounts with the NBG and other banks to be cash and cash 
equivalents. The minimum reserve deposit required by the NBG is not included in cash and cash 
equivalents due to restriction on its withdrawability. 
 

Financial instruments 

Classification 

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets or liabilities that are: 

- acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term; 

- part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which 
there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; 

- derivative financial instruments(except for derivative financial instruments that are designated 
and effective hedging instruments); or, 

- upon initial recognition, designated by the Bank as at fair value through profit or loss.  

The Bank designates financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss where 
either:  

- the assets or liabilities are managed and evaluated on a fair value basis;  

- the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch which would 
otherwise arise; or 

- the asset or liability contains an embedded derivative that significantly modifies the cash flows 
that would otherwise be required under the contract. 

All trading derivatives in a net receivable position (positive fair value), as well as options 
purchased, are reported assets. All trading derivatives in a net payable position (negative fair 
value), as well as options written, are reported liabilities. 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments 
that are not quoted in an active market, other than those that: 

- the Bank intends to sell immediately or in the near term; 

- the Bank upon initial recognition designates as at fair value through profit or loss;  

- the Bank upon initial recognition designates as available-for-sale; or 

- the Bank may not recover substantially all of its initial investment, other than because of credit 
deterioration. 

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments and fixed maturity that the Bank has the positive intention and ability to hold to 
maturity, other than those that: 



JSC BasisBank 
Notes to, and forming part of, the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008 
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- the Bank upon initial recognition designates as at fair value through profit or loss; 

- the Bank designates as available-for-sale; or 

- meet the definition of loans and receivables. 

Available-for-sale assets are those financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale or are 
not classified as loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial instruments at 
fair value through profit or loss. 

Management determines the appropriate classification of financial instruments at the time of 
initial recognition.  

Recognition 

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized in the balance sheet when the Bank becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases of financial assets are 
accounted for at the settlement date. 

Measurement 

A financial asset or liability is initially measured at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial 
asset or liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or liability. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets, including derivatives that are assets, are 
measured at their fair values, without any deduction for transaction costs that may be incurred on 
sale or other disposal, except for:  

- loans and receivables which are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method;  

- held-to-maturity investments which are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest  
method; and  

- investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and 
whose fair value can not be reliably measured which are measured at cost.  

All financial liabilities, other than those designated at fair value through profit or loss and 
financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset carried at fair value does not 
qualify for derecognition, are measured at amortized cost. Amortized cost is calculated using the 
effective interest rate method. Premiums and discounts, including initial transaction costs, are 
included in the carrying amount of the related instrument and amortized based on the effective 
interest rate of the instrument. Where a valuation based on observable market data indicates a fair 
value gain or loss on initial recognition of an asset or liability, the gain or loss is recognised 
immediately in the consolidated income statement. Where an initial gain or loss is not based 
entirely on observable market data, it is deferred and recognised over the life of the asset or 
liability on an appropriate basis, or when prices become observable, or on disposal of the asset or 
liability. 

Fair value measurement principles 

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their quoted market price at the balance sheet 
date without any deduction for transaction costs. If a quoted market price is not available, the fair 
value of the instrument is estimated using pricing models or discounted cash flow techniques. 
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Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash flows are based on 
management’s best estimates and the discount rate is a market related rate at the balance sheet 
date for an instrument with similar terms and conditions. Where pricing models are used, inputs 
are based on market related measures at the balance sheet date. 

The fair value of derivatives that are not exchange-traded is estimated at the amount that the Bank 
would receive or pay to terminate the contract at the balance sheet date taking into account current 
market conditions and the current creditworthiness of the counterparties. 

Gains and losses on subsequent measurement 

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or liability is recognized 
as follows:  

- a gain or loss on a financial instrument classified as at fair value through profit or loss is 
recognized in the consolidated income statement; 

- a gain or loss on an available-for-sale financial asset is recognized directly in equity through the 
consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity (except for impairment losses and 
foreign exchange gains and losses) until the asset is derecognized, at which time the cumulative 
gain or loss previously recognised in equity is recognized in the consolidated income statement. 
Interest in relation to an available-for-sale financial asset is recognized as earned in the 
consolidated income statement calculated using the effective interest method. 

For financial assets and liabilities carried at amortized cost, a gain or loss is recognized in the 
consolidated income statement when the financial asset or liability is derecognized or impaired, 
and through the amortization process. 

Derecognition 

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 
asset expire or when the Bank transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the 
financial asset. Any rights or obligations created or retained in the transfer are recognized 
separately as assets or liabilities. A financial liability is derecognised when it is extinguished. 

The Bank also derecognises certain assets when it writes off balances pertaining to the assets 
deemed to be uncollectible. 

Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements 

Securities sold under sale and repurchase (“repo”) agreements are accounted for as secured 
financing transactions, with the securities retained in the balance sheet and the counterparty 
liability included in amounts payable under repo transactions. The difference between the sale and 
repurchase prices represents interest expense and is recognized in the consolidated income 
statement over the term of the repo agreement using the effective interest rate method. 

Securities purchased under agreements to resell (“reverse repo”) are recorded as amounts 
receivable under reverse repo transactions. The difference between the purchase and resale prices 
represents interest income and is recognized in the consolidated income statement over the term of 
the repo agreement using the effective interest rate method. 

If assets purchased under agreement to resell are sold to third parties, the obligation to return 
securities is recorded as a trading liability and measured at fair value. 
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Offsetting 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when 
there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to 
settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

 
Property and equipment 
 
Owned assets 
 
Items of property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses, except for buildings which are stated at revalued amounts as described below.  
 
Where an item of property and equipment comprises major components having different useful 
lives, they are accounted for as separate items of property and equipment.  
 
Leased assets 
 
Operating leases and the leased assets are not recognized in the Bank’s balance sheet. 
 
Revaluation 
 
Buildings of the Bank are subject to revaluation on a regular basis. The frequency of revaluation 
depends upon the movements in the fair values of the buildings being revalued. A revaluation 
increase on an item of land and building is recognised directly in equity except to the extent that it 
reverses a previous revaluation decrease recognised in the income statement, in which case it is 
recognised in the income statement. A revaluation decrease on an item of land or buildings is 
recognised in the income statement except to the extent that it reverses a previous revaluation 
increase recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised directly in equity. 
 
The revaluation reserve is transferred to retained earnings when the asset is retired or disposed of. 
 
Depreciation 
 
Depreciation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful 
lives of the individual assets. Depreciation commences on the date of acquisition or, in respect of 
internally constructed assets, from the time an asset is completed and ready for use. Leasehold 
improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and lease term. The 
estimated useful lives are as follows: 
 

Buildings 50 years 

Computers and communication equipment 5 years 

Furniture and fittings 5 years 

Motor vehicles 5 years 

Leasehold improvements 2-3 years 

Other 10 years 
 
Intangible assets 
 
Intangible assets, which are acquired by the Bank, are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation 
and impairment losses.  
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Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire 
and bring to use the specific software. 
 
Amortisation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful 
lives of intangible assets. The estimated useful life of intangible assets is 10 years. 
 
Impairment 
 
Financial assets carried at amortized cost 
 
Financial assets carried at amortized cost consist principally of loans, other receivables and 
unquoted available-for-sale debt securities (“loans and receivables”).  The Bank reviews its loans 
and receivables, to assess impairment on a regular basis. A loan or receivable is impaired and 
impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result 
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the loan or receivable and that 
event (or events) has had an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the loan that can be 
reliably estimated.  
 
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include default or delinquency by a 
borrower, breach of loan covenants or conditions, restructuring of a loan or advance by the Bank 
on terms that the Bank would not otherwise consider, indications that a borrower or issuer will 
enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a security, deterioration in the value 
of collateral, or other observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the 
payment status of borrowers in the group, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in 
the group. 
 
The Bank first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for loans 
and receivables that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for loans and 
receivables that are not individually significant. If the Bank determines that no objective evidence 
of impairment exists for an individually assessed loan or receivable, whether significant or not, it 
includes the loan in a group of loans and receivables with similar credit risk characteristics and 
collectively assesses them for impairment. Loans and receivables that are individually assessed 
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not included 
in a collective assessment of impairment. 
 
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on a loan or receivable has been incurred, 
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the loan or 
receivable and the present value of estimated future cash flows including amounts recoverable 
from guarantees and collateral discounted at the loan or receivable’s original effective interest 
rate. Contractual cash flows and historical loss experience adjusted on the basis of relevant 
observable data that reflect current economic conditions provide the basis for estimating expected 
cash flows. 
 
In some cases the observable data required to estimate the amount of an impairment loss on a loan 
or receivable may be limited or no longer fully relevant to current circumstances. This may be the 
case when a borrower is in financial difficulties and there is little available historical data relating 
to similar borrowers. In such cases, the Bank uses its experience and judgment to estimate the 
amount of any impairment loss.  
 
All impairment losses in respect of loans and receivables are recognized in the income statement 
and are only reversed if a subsequent increase in recoverable amount can be related objectively to 
an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised. 
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All impairment losses in respect of loans and receivables are recognized in the consolidated 
income statement and are only reversed if a subsequent increase in recoverable amount can be 
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised. 
 
When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowance for loan impairment. 
The Bank writes off a loan balance (and any related allowances for loan losses) when the Bank’s 
management determines that the loans are uncollectible and when all necessary steps to collect the 
loan are completed.  
 
Financial assets carried at cost  
 
Financial assets carried at cost include unquoted equity instruments included in available-for-sale 
assets that are not carried at fair value because their fair value can not be reliably measured. If 
there is objective evidence that such investments are impaired, the impairment loss is calculated 
as the difference between the carrying amount of the investment and the present value of the 
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial 
asset.  
 
All impairment losses in respect of these investments are recognized in the income statement and 
can not be reversed. 
 
Non financial assets 
 
Other non financial assets, other than deferred taxes, are assessed at each reporting date for any 
indications of impairment. The recoverable amount of non financial assets is the greater of their 
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that 
does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable 
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. An impairment loss 
is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its 
recoverable amount. 
 
All impairment losses in respect of non financial assets are recognized in the income statement 
and reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 
amount. Any impairment loss reversed is only reversed to the extent that the asset’s carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. 
 
Provisions 
 
A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Bank has a legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will 
be required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material, provisions are determined by 
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. 
 
Credit related commitments 
 
In the normal course of business, the Bank enters into credit related commitments, comprising 
undrawn loan commitments, letters of credit and guarantees, and provides other forms of credit 
insurance.  
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Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Bank to make specified payments to reimburse 
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in 
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. 
 
A financial guarantee liability is recognised initially at fair value net of associated transaction 
costs, and is measured subsequently at the higher of the amount initially recognised less 
cumulative amortisation or the amount of provision for losses under the guarantee. Provisions for 
losses under financial guarantees and other credit related commitments are recognised when 
losses are considered probable and can be measured reliably.  
 
Financial guarantee liabilities and provisions for other credit related commitment are included 
within other liabilities. 
 
Share capital 
 
Share Premium 
 
Share premium is calculated as the difference between the par value and the amount paid for 
shares issued. 
 
Dividends 
 
The ability of the Bank to declare and pay dividends is subject to the rules and regulations of the 
Georgian legislation. 
 
Dividends in relation to ordinary shares are reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings in 
the period when they are declared. 
 
Taxation 
 
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the income statement 
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is 
recognised in equity. 
 
Current tax expense is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates 
enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in 
respect of previous years. 
 
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary 
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes 
and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The temporary differences from the initial 
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit are not provided 
for. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or 
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantially 
enacted at the balance sheet date. 
 
A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits 
will be available against which the temporary differences, unused tax losses and credits can be 
utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related 
tax benefit will be realised. 
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Income and expense recognition  
 
Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement using the effective interest 
method. 
 
Loan origination fees, loan servicing fees and other fees that are considered to be integral to the 
overall profitability of a loan, together with the related direct costs, are deferred and amortized to 
the interest income over the estimated life of the financial instrument using the effective interest 
rate method. 
 
Other fees, commissions and other income and expense items are recognised when the 
corresponding service has been provided.  
 
New Standards and Interpretations not yet adopted 
 
A number of new Standards, amendments to Standards and Interpretations are not yet effective as 
at 31 December 2008, and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. Of these 
pronouncements, potentially the following will have an impact on the Bank’s operations.                
The Bank plans to adopt these pronouncements when they become effective. The Bank has not yet 
analysed the likely impact of these new standards on its financial statements. 
 
• IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Revised), which is effective for annual periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2009, specifies how an entity should present changes in equity 
not resulting from transactions with owners and other changes in equity in its financial 
statements, and introduces certain other requirements in respect of presentation of information 
in the financial statements. 

 
• Amendments to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement – Eligible 

Hedged Items, which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009, which 
introduce additional application guidance which clarifies that changes in the cash flows or fair 
value of a hedged item above or below a specified price or variable can be designated. 

 
• Amendment to IAS 18 Revenue, which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 

1 January 2009, provides guidance on transaction costs related to originating a financial asset, 
which is aligned with the definition of transaction costs as included in IAS 39.   

 
 
4 Net interest income 
 
 
 2008

GEL’000 
 2007

GEL’000 

Interest income    
Loans to customers 11,966  10,004 
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 239  347 
Other interest income 72  38 

 12,277  10,389 

Interest expense    
Current accounts and deposits from customers 3,339  3,659 
Deposits and balances from banks and other financial institutions 2,075  228 

 5,414  3,887 
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5 Fee and commission income 
 
 2008

GEL’000 
 2007

GEL’000 
    
Plastic card fees            1,369   915 
Guarantee and letter of credit issuance fees               698   626 
Settlement fees               365   557 
Account maintenance and cash operations fees               496   512 
Other               936   500 

 3,864  3,110 

 
 
6 Fee and commission expense 
 
 2008

GEL’000 
 2007

GEL’000 
    
Plastic card system fees 873  405 
Settlement fees 192  147 
Other 140  158 

 1,205  710 

 
 
7 Net foreign exchange income 
 
 2008

GEL’000 
 2007

GEL’000 
    
Gain on spot transactions 1,708  1,667 
Loss from revaluation of financial assets and liabilities 111  (35) 

 1,819  1,632 

 
 
8 Other income/(expenses) 
 
 2008

GEL’000 
 2007

GEL’000 
    
Fines and penalties received 430  356 
Fines and penalties paid (82)  (12) 
(Loss)/gain on sale of repossessed assets (101)  275 
Other (126)  (5) 

 121  614 
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9 Impairment (losses)/recoveries 
 
 2008

GEL’000 
 2007

GEL’000 
    
Loans to customers (4,125)  65 
Other assets (533)  62 

 (4,658)  127 

 
 
10 General administrative expenses 
 
 2008

GEL’000 
 2007

GEL’000 
    
Employee compensation 3,585  2,166 
Payroll related taxes 1,195  817 
Depreciation and amortization            1,016   786 
Advertising and marketing               761   499 
Occupancy               630   491 
Security               539   415 
Professional services               331   199 
Office supplies               186   110 
Repairs and maintenance               158   207 
Communications and information services               148   303 
Taxes other than on income               112   63 
Travel and training                 70   81 
Other               438   491 

 9,169  6,628 
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11 Income tax benefit/(expense) 
 
 2008

GEL’000 
 2007

GEL’000 

Current tax benefit/(expense)    
Current year -  (764) 
Over/(under) provided in prior years 100  (34) 

 100  (798) 
Deferred tax benefit/(expense)    
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 311  (170) 
Change in tax rate -  85 

 311  (85) 
    
Total income tax benefit/(expense) in the income statement 411  (883) 

 
The Bank’s applicable income tax rate for current tax is 15% effective from 1 January 2008 
(2007: 15%).  
 
Reconciliation of effective tax rate: 
 
 2008

GEL’000 
 

% 
 2007 

GEL’000 
 

% 

Income before tax (2,365) 
 

 
 

4,647 
 

 
        
Income tax at the applicable tax rate (355)  15%  929  20% 
Change in tax rate -  -  (85)  (2%) 
(Over)/under provided in prior years (100)  4%  34  1% 
Non-deductible costs 44  (2%)  5  0% 

 (401)  17%  883  19% 

 
 
12 Due from the National Bank of Georgia 
 
 2008

GEL’000 
 2007

GEL’000 
    
Nostro accounts 3,216  12,719 
Mandatory minimum reserve deposit 1,295  4,541 

 4,511  17,260 

 
The withdrawability of the mandatory minimum reserve deposit is restricted. 
 
The minimum reserve deposit is a mandatory interest bearing deposit in foreign currency 
calculated in accordance with regulations issued by NBG and whose withdrawability is restricted. 
The Nostro accounts represent balances with the NBG related to settlement activity and were 
available for withdrawal at year end. Withdrawal of the reserve deposit in GEL is not resticted, 
however the Bank is subject to penalties if the average required balance is not maintained over a 
14 day period.  
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13 Placements with banks and other financial institutions 
 
 2008 

GEL’000 
 2007 

GEL’000  

Not impaired or past due    
Nostro accounts    
OECD banks              9,749   1,318 
Other foreign banks                 170   146 
Largest 10 Georgian banks                   30   1,748 

Total nostro accounts 9,949  3,212 
    
Deposits and other advances to banks     
OECD banks                 293   611 
Other foreign banks                   -    - 
Largest 10 Georgian banks 3,000  2,095 

Total deposits and other advances to banks 3,293  2,706 
    

 13,242  5,918 

 
Collateral 
 
As of 31 December 2008 and 2007 placements with banks are not collateralized. 
 
Concentration of placements with banks and other financial institutions 
 
As at 31 December 2008 and 2007 the Bank had 2 and 3 banks, respectively, whose balances 
exceeded 10% of total placements with banks. The gross value of these balances as of                           
31 December 2008 and 2007 were GEL 11,321 thousand and GEL 4,997 thousand, respectively. 
 
 
14 Loans to customers 
 
 2008 

GEL’000 
 2007

GEL’000 

    
Corporate loans             31,992  34,674 
    
Loans to individuals    
Loans collateralised by real estate              11,713  12,475 
Credit cards               9,915  5,999 
Auto loans               1,285  855 
Other consumer loans              13,907  10,252 

Total loans to individuals             36,820  29,581 
    
Gross loans to customers             68,812  64,255 
Impairment allowance (5,281)  (1,779) 

Net loans to customers             63,531  62,476 
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Movements in the loan impairment allowance for the year ended 31 December 2008 are as 
follows: 
 
 2008 

GEL’000 
 2007

GEL’000 
    
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,779  2,133 
Net charge/(recovery) for the year (Note 9) 4,125  (65) 
Net write-offs  (623)  (289) 

Balance at the end of the year 5,281  1,779 

 
As at 31 December 2008, interest accrued on impaired loans amounted to GEL 205 thousand. 
 
Credit quality of corporate loan portfolio 
 
The following table provides information on the credit quality of the corporate loan portfolio as at 
31 December 2008:  
 
 

Gross loans 
 

Impairment 
 

Net loans 
 Impairment to 

gross loans 
 GEL’000  GEL’000  GEL’000  % 

        
Loans for which no impairment 
has been identified:  

 
 

 
 

 
 

- Not overdue    23,727         (949)  22,778  4.0% 
- Watch list loans      1,139           (46)  1,093  4.0% 
Impaired loans:        
- overdue less than 90 days      3,503         (504)  2,999  14.4% 

- overdue more than 90 days and 
less than 1 year      3,623 

   
(1,503) 

 
2,120 

 
41.5% 

Total corporate loans    31,992      (3,002)  28,990  9.4% 

 
The following table provides information on the credit quality of the corporate loan portfolio as at 
31 December 2007:  
 
 

Gross loans 
 

Impairment 
 

Net loans 
 Impairment to 

gross loans 
 GEL’000  GEL’000  GEL’000  % 

        
Loans for which no impairment 
has been identified:  

 
 

 
 

 
 

- Not overdue 34,426  (632)  33,794  1.8% 
Impaired loans:        
- overdue less than 90 days 58  (1)  57  1.7% 
- overdue more than 1 year 190  (4)  186  2.1% 

Total corporate loans 34,674  (637)  34,037  1.8% 
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The Bank has estimated impairment provision for corporate loans based on an analysis of the 
future cash flows for impaired loans. The amount of the provision is measured as the difference 
between the carrying amount of the loan and the present value of estimated future cash flows 
including amounts recoverable from guarantees and collateral discounted at the loan original 
effective interest rate.  
 
For corporate loans for which no objective evidence of impairment existed as at 31 December 
2008, the Bank included these loans in groups of loans with similar credit risk characteristics and 
collectively assessed them for impairment. The Bank has created 2% (2007: 2%) provision for 
impairment on these loans, based on the expected loss rate of the Bank and other comparable 
banks in Georgia.  
 
Changes in these estimates could effect the loan impairment provision. For example, to the extent 
that the net present value of the estimated cash flows differs by one percent, the loan impairment 
provision on corporate loans as of 31 December 2008 would be GEL 300 thousand lower/higher.  
 
During the year ended 31 December 2008 the Bank renegotiated several commercial loans that 
would otherwise be past due or impaired. Such restructuring activity is aimed at managing 
customer relationships and maximising collection opportunities. 
 
Analysis of movements in the impairment allowance 
 
Movements in the loan impairment allowance of corporate loans for the years ended 31 December 
2008 and 2007 are as follows: 
 
 2008 

GEL’000 
 2007 

GEL’000 

    
Loan impairment allowance as at 1 January 637  739 
Net loans recovered/(written off) during the year 14  (145) 
Loan impairment losses during the year  2,351  43 

Loan impairment allowance as at 31 December 3,002  637 

 
Analysis of collateral  
 
The following table provides the analysis of the corporate loan portfolio, net of impairment, by 
types of collateral as at 31 December 2008 and 2007: 
 
 

2008 
 % of loan  

portfolio  
 

2007 
 % of loan  

portfolio  

        
Real estate   24,113   83%  24,402  72% 
Third party guarantees     3,049   11%  5,056  15% 
Equipment and motor vehicles        289   1%  2,534  7% 
Inventories        280   1%  877  3% 
Cash          55   0%  44  0% 
Unsecured        590   2%  1,124  3% 
Other        614   2%  -  - 

Total        28,990   100%  34,037  100% 
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The amounts shown in the table above represent the carrying value of the loans, and do not 
necessarily represent the fair value of the collateral. 
  
During the year ended 31 December 2008 the Bank obtained assets of GEL 1,776 thousand                
(Note 18) by taking control of collateral accepted as security for corporate loans                            
(31 December 2007: GEL 30 thousand). 
 

Impaired or overdue loans with a gross value of GEL 5,798 thousand are secured by collateral 
with a fair value of GEL 7,723 thousand. For the remaining impaired loans of GEL 23 thousand 
there is no collateral or it is impracticable to determine fair value of collateral.  

 
 
Credit quality of loans to individuals 
 
The following table provides information on the credit quality of loans to individuals’ portfolios 
as at 31 December 2008:  
 

Gross loans Impairment Net loans 
 Impairment to 

gross loans
 

GEL’000 GEL’000 GEL’000  %
Loans collateralised by real estate       

- Not overdue        8,694         (348)        8,346   4.0%
- overdue less than 90 days        1,510           (60)        1,450   4.0%
- overdue more than 90 days and less than         
1 year        1,509         (572)        937   37.9%

Total loans collateralised by real estate 11,713         (980) 10,733   8.4%
Credit cards   
- Not overdue        9,229         (369)        8,860   4.0%
- overdue less than 90 days           627         (126)           501   20.1%
- overdue more than 90 days and less than         
1 year             59           (20)             39   33.9%

Total credit cards        9,915         (515)        9,400   5.2%
Auto loans   
- Not overdue        1,210           (48)        1,162   4.0%
- overdue less than 90 days             71             (3)             68   4.2%

- overdue more than 90 days and less than         
1 year               4 (1)               3   25%

Total auto loans        1,285           (52)        1,233   4.0%

Other consumer loans   

- Not overdue      11,889         (476)      11,413   4.0%

- overdue less than 90 days        1,544           (79)        1,465   5.1%

- overdue more than 90 days and less than         
1 year           450         (169)           281  37.6%

- overdue more than 1 year             24             (8)             16   33.3 %

Total other consumer loans      13,907         (732)      13,175   5.3%
Total loans to individuals      36,820      (2,279)      34,541   6.2%
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The following table provides information on the credit quality of loans to individual’s portfolios 
as at 31 December 2007:  
 

Gross loans Impairment Net loans 
 Impairment to 

gross loans
 

GEL’000 GEL’000 GEL’000  %
Loans collateralised by real estate       

- Not overdue 10,693 187 10,506 1.7%

- overdue less than 90 days 166 3 163 1.8%
- overdue more than 90 days and less than 1 
year 428 7 421 1.6%

- overdue more than 1 year 1,188 20 1,168 1.7%

Total loans collateralised by real estate 12,475 217 12,258 1.7%
Credit cards not overdue 5,999 192 5,807 3.2%
Auto loans  
- Not overdue 804 25 779 3.1%
- overdue less than 90 days 36 7 29 19.4%

- overdue more than 90 days and less than         
1 year 13 4 9 30%

- overdue more than 1 year 2 2 - 100%

Total auto loans 855 38 817 4.4%
Other consumer loans  
- Not overdue 9,622 423 9,199 4.4%
- overdue less than 90 days 292 58 234 20%
- overdue more than 90 days and less than 1 
year 310 186 124 60%

- overdue more than 1 year 28 28 - 100%
Total other consumer loans 10,252 695 9,557 6.8%

Total loans to individuals 29,581 1,142 28,439 3.9%
 
The significant assumptions used in determining the impairment losses for loans to individuals are 
based on the economic environment and consideration of historical and market experience and 
include the following loan loss rates: 
 
− Loans collateralized by real estate – 8.4% 
− Credit cards – 5.2% 
− Auto loans – 4.0% 
− Other consumer loans – 5.3% 
 
Changes in these estimates could effect the loan impairment provision. For example, to the extent 
that the net present value of the estimated cash flows differs by plus/minus one percent, the loan 
impairment on loans to individuals as of 31 December 2008 would be GEL 353 thousand 
lower/higher.  
 
Analysis of collateral  
 
The Bank estimates that the fair value of the collateral for overdue or impaired loans collateralised 
by real estate is at least equal to 95% of the loan balance. Management believes that it is 
impracticable to estimate fair value of collateral held in respect of other loans to individuals. 
 

Mortgage loans are secured by underlying housing real estate. Auto loans are secured by 
underlying car. Credit cards and consumer loans are not secured. 
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. 
Impaired or overdue loans with a gross value of GEL 3,095 thousand are secured by collateral 
with a fair value of GEL 6,042 thousand. For the remaining impaired loans of GEL 2,703 
thousand there is no collateral or it is impracticable to determine fair value of collateral. 
 
Analysis of movements in the impairment allowance 
 
Movements in the loan impairment allowance by classes of retail loans for the year ended 
31 December 2008 are as follows: 
 
GEL’000 Loans 

collateralised 
by real estate

Auto 
loans

Credit 
cards

Other 
loans  

 

Total
Loan impairment allowance as at 
1 January 217 38 192 695 

 
1,142 

Net loans recovered/(written off) during 
the year 183 (4) 31 (847) 

 
(637) 

Loan impairment losses/(recoveries) 
during the year  580 18 

 
292 884 

 
1,774 

Loan impairment allowance as at             
31 December 980 52 515 732 

 
2,279 

 
Movements in the loan impairment allowance by classes of retail loans for the year ended 
31 December 2007 are as follows: 
 
GEL’000 Loans 

collateralised 
by real estate

Auto 
loans

Credit 
cards

Other 
loans  

 

Total
Loan impairment allowance as at 
1 January 171 4 132 1,087 

 
1,394 

Loans written off during the year as 
uncollectible 4 - (147) (1) 

 
(144) 

Loan impairment losses during the year  42 34 207 (391)  (108) 

Loan impairment allowance as at             
31 December 217 38 192 695 

 
1,142 

 
Industry analysis of the loan portfolio 
 
Loans to customers were issued primarily to customers located within Georgia, who operate in the 
following economic sectors (shown net of impairment): 
 
 2008 

GEL’000 
 2007

GEL’000 
    
Trade and services 12,620  17,054 
Construction 8,760  9,504 
Mining/metallurgy and production 4,285  3,495 
Agriculture 1,500  - 
Transportation and communication        633   2,260 
Energy 297  - 
Other 895  1,724 
Loans to individuals 34,541  28,439 

   63,531   62,476 
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Significant credit exposures 
 
As at 31 December 2008 the Bank did not have any borrowers or groups of related borrowers, 
whose loan balances exceeded 10% of loans to customers. 
 
Loan maturities 
 
The maturity of the Bank’s loan portfolio is presented in Note 34, which shows the remaining 
period from the reporting date to the contractual maturity of the loans comprising the loan 
portfolio. Due to the short-term nature of the loans issued by the Bank, it is likely that many of the 
Bank’s loans to customers will be prolonged on maturity. Accordingly, the effective maturity of 
the loan portfolio may be significantly longer than the classification indicated based on 
contractual terms. 
 
 
15 Available-for-sale assets 
 
 2008  2007 
 GEL’000  GEL’000 

Equity instruments - Unquoted    
Corporate shares 54  -

 54  - 

 
Investment without a determinable fair value 
 
Available-for-sale equity instruments stated at cost comprise unquoted equity securities in the 
financial services industry. There is no market for these investments and there have not been any 
recent transactions that provide evidence of the current fair values. In addition, discounted cash 
flow techniques yield a wide range of fair values due to the uncertainty regarding future cash 
flows.  
 
 
16 Held to maturity investments 
 
 2008  2007 
 GEL’000  GEL’000 

Held by the bank    
Debt and other fixed-income instruments    
NBG deposit certificates 20  -
Corporate bonds 102  -

 122  -

   
Pledged under sale and repurchase agreements   
Debt and other fixed-income instruments   
NBG deposit certificates 2,954  -

 2,954  -
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17  Property and equipment 

 
GEL’000 
 

Buildings 

 Computers and 
communication 

equipment 

 
Furniture 

and fittings 

 
Motor 

vehicles 

 
Leasehold 

improvement 

 

Other 

 

Total 

Cost/Revalued amount           
At 1 January 2007 6,325  1,939  372  89  -  62  8,787 
Additions 66  1,301  158  28  414  23  1,990 
Disposals -  (249)  (34)  (18)  -  -  (301) 

At 31 December 2007  6,391  2,991  496  99  414  85  10,476 

           
At 1 January 2008 6,391  2,991  496  99                   414   85  10,476 
Additions 4,950  354  165  23  -  20  5,512 
Disposals (854)  (59)  (82)  -  -  -  (995) 
Transfers -  -  294  -  (294)  -  - 

At 31 December 2008 10,487  3,286  873  122  120  105  14,993 

 
Depreciation            
At 1 January 2007 217  500  159  28  -  12  916 
Depreciation charge  132  499  61  18  41  8  759 
Disposals   (134)  (34)  (17)  -  -  (185) 

At 31 December 2007 349  865  186  29  41  20  1,490 

           
At 1 January 2008 349  865  186  29  41  20  1,490 
Depreciation charge  131  622  166  24  40  10  993 
Disposals (179)  (63)  (81)  -  -  -  (323) 
Transfers -  -  36  -  (36)  -  - 

At 31 December 2008    301     1,424   307       53       45     30   2,160 

           
Carrying value           
At 1 January 2007 6,108  1,439  213  61  -  50  7,871 

At 31 December 2007 6,042  2,126  310  70  373  65  8,986 

At 31 December 2008 10,186  1,862  566  69  75  75  12,833 

 

Revalued assets 

In July 2006, the buildings were revalued by Management based on the results of an independent appraisal 
performed by Giorgi Lezhava.  The fair values of the revalued items were determined based on the discounted 
cash flow method (income approach) and method of sales comparison (comparative approach).  For the 
estimation of the final value, the approach used was dependent on the reliability and completeness of the 
information and available market information of the specific buildings. 

The carrying value of buildings as of 31 December 2008, if the buildings would not have been revalued, would be 
GEL 7,587 thousand (2007: GEL 7,718 thousand). 
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18 Other assets 
 
 2008 

GEL’000 
 2007

GEL’000 

    
Repossessed assets          1,776   30 
Prepayments for property and equipment          1,748   860 
Receivables from payments processing systems 832  237 
Accounts receivable             500   - 
Prepayment of income tax 418  - 
Other receivables             106   7 
Allowance for impairment losses on repossessed assets            (533)  - 

 4,847  1,134 

 
Analysis of movements in impairment allowance for other assets 
 
 2008 

GEL’000 
 2007

GEL’000 

    
Balance as at 1 January                   -    62 
Net charge/(recovery) for the year (Note 9)                 533   (62) 

Balance as at 31 December                 533   - 

 
 
19 Deposits and balances from banks and other financial 

institutions 
 
 2008 

GEL’000 
 2007

GEL’000 
    
Loans from European Bank for Reconstruction and Development 10,458  4,855 
Term deposits of local banks 5,028  5,608 
Loan from Ministry of Finance 3,154  758 
Loan from the National Bank of Georgia 2,100  3,000 
Vostro accounts              1,813   30 

 22,553  14,251 

 
Concentration of deposits and balances from banks and other financial institutions 
 
As at 31 December 2008 and 2007 the Bank had 3 and 4 banks and financial institutions, 
respectively, whose balances exceeded 10% of total deposits and balances from banks and other 
financial institutions. The gross value of these balances as of 31 December 2008 and 2007 were 
GEL 18,302 thousand and GEL 13,464 thousand, respectively. 
 
As at 31 December 2008 the Bank had breached several covenants for loans from the Ministry of 
Finance (MOF).  Per the loan agreements with the MOF if loan covenants are breached, MOF 
may declare all or any portion of the loans immediately due.  As a result, these loans have been 
re-classified as due on demand in notes 25 and 34. 
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20 Amounts payable under repurchase agreements 
 
 2008 2007 
 GEL’000 GEL’000 
    
Amounts due to National Bank of Georgia 2,801  - 

 
Collateral 
 
As of 31 December 2008, amounts payable under repurchase agreements were collateralised by 
the following securities: 
 
 2008  2007 
 GEL’000  GEL’000 

    
NBG deposit certificates 2,954  - 

 
21 Current accounts and deposits from customers 
 
 2008 

GEL’000 
 2007

GEL’000 
    
Current accounts 37,745  47,727 
Demand deposits 9,167  3,398 
Term deposits 15,133  18,510 

 62,045  69,635 

 
Blocked accounts 
 
As of 31 December 2008, the Bank maintained customer deposit balances of GEL 1,345 thousand 
(2007: GEL 1,288 thousand) which were blocked by the Bank as collateral for loans and                   
off-balance sheet credit instruments granted by the Bank. 
 
Concentrations of current accounts and customer deposits 
 
As of 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Bank had no customer whose balances exceeded 10% of 
total customer accounts and deposits. 
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22 Other liabilities 
 
 2008 

GEL’000 
 2007

GEL’000 
    
Payables for payments processing systems              1,268   502 
Current income tax liability -  281 
Accrued expenses                 170   77 
Taxes payable, other than income tax                   49   42 

              1,487   902 

 
 
23 Deferred tax asset and liability 
 
Temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial 
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes give rise to net deferred tax 
liabilities as of 31 December 2008 and 2007.  
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:  
 
GEL’000 Assets Liabilities  Net 
 2008  2007 2008  2007  2008  2007 
           
Loans to customers 303  24 -  -  303  24 
Property and equipment -  - (1,436)  (696)  (1,436)  (696) 
Other liabilities 66  - -  (8)  66  (8) 
Tax loss carry-forwards  698  - -  -  698  - 

Recognized net deferred tax assets/ 
(liabilities) 1,067  24 (1,436)  (704)  (369)  (680) 

 
The tax rate applicable for deferred taxes was 15% (2007: 15%). 
 
The above net deductible temporary differences do not expire under current tax legislation. 
 
Movement in temporary differences during the year ended 31 December 2008 
 
GEL’000 

Balance 
1 January 2008  

Recognised in 
income  

Balance 
31 December 

2008 
      
Loans to customers 24  279  303 
Property and equipment (696)  (740)  (1,436) 
Other liabilities (8)  74  66 
Tax loss carry-forwards -  698  698 

 (680)  311  (369) 
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Movement in temporary differences during the year ended 31 December 2007 
 
GEL’000 Balance 

1 January 2007 
 Recognised in 

income 
 Recognised 

in equity 
 Balance 

31 December 2007 
        
Loans to customers 8  16  -  24 
Property and equipment (721)  (117)  142  (696) 
Other liabilities (24)  16  -  (8) 

 (737)  (85)  142  (680) 

 
 
24 Share capital 
 
Issued capital 
 
The authorized share capital comprises 6,700,001 ordinary shares (2007: 5,200,000), with a par 
value of GEL 1 per share, from which 5,912,000 were issued, paid and outstanding as at                       
31 December 2008 (2007: 5,025,000).  
 
Share premium 
 
During 2008, the bank issued 887,000 new shares with a par value of GEL 1 per share for GEL 
6,499 thousand which created share premium of GEL 5,612 thousand. 
 
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and 
are entitled to one vote per share at annual and general meetings of the Bank.  
 
Dividends 
 
Dividends payable are restricted to the maximum retained earnings of the Bank less general 
reserves as recorded in the Bank’s statutory accounts, which are determined according to the 
legislation of Georgia. 
 
At the balance sheet date the following interim dividends had been declared and paid by the Bank: 
 
 2008  

GEL’000  
 2007 

GEL’000  
    
0.00 GEL per ordinary share (2007: 0.30) -  1,500  
 
Subsequent to 31 December 2008 no dividends have been declared by the Bank.  
 
 
25 Risk management 
 
Management of risk is fundamental to the business of banking and is an essential element of the 
Bank’s operations. The major risks faced by the Bank are those related to market risk, which 
includes price, interest rate and currency risks, credit risk and liquidity risk.  
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Risk management policies and procedures  
 
The Bank’s risk management policies aim to identify, analyse and manage the risks faced by the 
Bank, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to continuously monitor risk levels and 
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and procedures are reviewed regularly to reflect 
changes in market conditions, products and services offered and emerging best practice.  
 
The Supervisory Board of the Bank has overall responsibility for the oversight of the risk 
management framework, overseeing the management of key risks and reviewing its risk 
management policies and procedures as well as approving significantly large exposures. 
The Management Board of the Bank is responsible for monitoring and implementation of risk 
mitigation measures and making sure that the Bank operate within the established risk parameters.  
 
Credit, market and liquidity risks both at portfolio and transactional levels are managed and 
controlled through a system of Credit Committees and an Asset and Liability Management 
Committee. In order to facilitate efficient decision-making, the Bank has established a hierarchy 
of credit committees depending on the type and amount of the exposure. 
 
Both external and internal risk factors are identified and managed throughout the Bank’s 
organisational structure. Particular attention is given to developing risk maps that are used to 
identify the full range of risk factors and serve as a basis for determining the level of assurance 
over the current risk mitigation procedures. Apart from the standard credit and market risk 
analysis, the Management Board monitors financial and non-financial risks by holding regular 
meetings with operational units in order to obtain expert judgments in their areas of expertise.  
 
Market risk 
 
Market risk is the risk that movements in market prices, including foreign exchange rates, interest 
rates, credit spreads and equity prices will affect the Bank’s income or the value of its portfolios. 
Market risks comprise currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. Market risk arises from 
open positions in interest rate, currency and equity financial instruments, which are exposed to 
general and specific market movements and changes in the level of volatility of market prices. 
 
The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within 
acceptable parameters, whilst optimizing the return on risk. 
 
Overall authority for market risk is vested in the Management Board, chaired by the General 
Director of the Bank. Market risk limits are approved by Management Board based on 
recommendations of the Treasury Department.  
 
The Bank manages its market risk by setting open position limits in relation to financial 
instrument, interest rate maturity and currency positions which are monitored on a regular basis 
and reviewed and approved by the Management Board.  
 
The management of interest rates risk, component of market risk, by monitoring interest rate gap 
is supplemented by monitoring the sensitivity of the Bank’s net interest margin to various 
standard and non-standard interest rate scenarios. 
 
Interest rate risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that movements in interest rates will affect the Bank’s income or the 
value of its portfolios of financial instruments. 
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The Bank is exposed to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates 
on its financial position and cash flows. Interest margins may increase as a result of such changes 
but may also reduce or create losses in the event that unexpected movements arise.  
 
Interest rate risk arises when the actual or forecasted assets of a given maturity period are either 
greater or less than the actual or forecasted liabilities in that maturity period. 
 
An analysis of sensitivity of the Bank’s profit and equity to changes in the market interest rate 
based on a simplified scenario of a 100 basis point (bp) symmetrical fall or rise in all yield curves 
and positions of interest-bearing assets and liabilities existing as at 31 December 2008 and 31 
December 2007 is as follows: 
 
 2008 2007 
 Profit Equity Profit  Equity 
      
100 bp parallel increase (54) (54) (22)  (22) 
100 bp parallel decrease 54 54 22  22 
 
 
Currency risk 
 
The Bank has assets and liabilities denominated in several foreign currencies. Foreign currency 
risk arises when the actual or forecasted assets in a foreign currency are either greater or less than 
the liabilities in that currency. For further information on the Bank’s exposure to currency risk at 
year end refer to Note 35. 
 
An analysis of sensitivity of the Bank’s profit for the year and equity to changes in the foreign 
currency exchange rates based on positions existing as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 and a 
simplified scenario of a 5% change in USD and Euro to Georgian Lari exchange rates is as 
follows: 
 
 2008 2007 
 Profit Equity Profit  Equity 
      
5% appreciation of USD against GEL 30 30 16  16 
5% depreciation of USD against GEL (30) (30) (16)  (16) 
5% appreciation of EUR against GEL (111) (113) (43)  (43) 
5% depreciation of EUR against GEL 111 111 43  43 
 
Credit risk 
 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss occurring as a result of default by a borrower or 
counterparty on their obligation to the Bank. The Bank has developed policies and procedures for 
the management of credit exposures (both for on balance sheet and off balance sheet exposures), 
including guidelines to limit portfolio concentration and the establishment of a Credit Committee, 
which actively monitors the Bank’s credit risk. The Bank’s credit policy is reviewed and approved 
by the Management Board. 
 
The Bank’s credit policy establishes: 
 
• Procedures for review and approval of loan/credit applications; 
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• Methodology for the credit assessment of borrowers (corporate, small and medium size 
companies and retail); 

• Methodology for the credit assessment of counterparties, issuers and insurance companies; 
• Methodology for the evaluation of collateral; 
• Credit documentation requirements; 
• Procedures for the ongoing monitoring of loans and other credit exposures. 
 
Corporate loan/credit applications are originated by the relevant client managers and are then 
passed on to the Corporate Loans Department. Reports produced by the department’s credit 
analysts are based on a structured analysis focusing on the customer’s business and financial 
performance. The Credit Committee reviews the loan/credit application on the basis of submission 
by the Corporate Loans Department. Individual transactions are also reviewed by the Bank’s 
Legal, Accounting and Tax departments depending on the specific risks and pending final 
approval of the Credit Committee. 
 
The Bank continuously monitors the performance of individual credit exposures and regularly 
reassesses the creditworthiness of its customers. The review is based on the customer’s most 
recent financial statements and other information submitted by the borrower, or otherwise 
obtained by the Bank. The current market value of collateral is regularly assessed by either 
independent appraisal companies or the Bank’s specialists, and in the event of negative 
movements in market prices the borrower is usually requested to put up additional security. 
 
Retail loan/credit applications are reviewed by the Bank’s Retail Loans Department through the 
use of scoring models and application data verification procedures. 
 
Apart from individual customer analysis, the whole credit portfolio is assessed by the Credit 
Committee with regard to credit concentration and market risks.  
 
The Bank’s maximum exposure to on and off balance sheet credit risk is generally reflected in the 
carrying amounts of financial assets on the balance sheet and guarantees and credit commitments 
included in Note 33. The impact of possible netting of assets and liabilities to reduce potential 
credit exposure is not significant. 
 
The Bank monitors concentrations of credit risk by industry/sector. For the analysis of 
concentration of credit risk in respect of loans and advances to customers refer to Note 14 “Loans 
to customers”. 
 
Liquidity risk 
 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet its 
commitments. Liquidity risk exists when the maturities of assets and liabilities do not match. The 
matching and/or controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest rates of assets and liabilities 
is fundamental to the management of financial institutions, including the Bank. It is unusual for 
financial institutions ever to be completely matched since business transacted is often of an 
uncertain term and of different types. An unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, 
but can also increase the risk of losses. 
 
The Bank maintains liquidity management with the objective of ensuring that funds will be 
available at all times to honor all cash flow obligations as they become due. The Bank’s liquidity 
policy is reviewed and approved by the Management Board.  
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The Bank seeks to actively support a diversified and stable funding base comprising long-term 
and short-term loans from other banks, core corporate and retail customer deposits, accompanied 
by diversified portfolios of highly liquid assets, in order to be able to respond quickly and 
smoothly to unforeseen liquidity requirements.  
 
The liquidity management policy of the Bank requires: 
 
• projecting cash flows by major currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary 

in relation thereto; 
• maintaining a diverse range of funding sources; 
• managing the concentration and profile of debts; 
• maintaining debt financing plans; 
• maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable assets that can easily be liquidated as protection 

against any interruption to cash flow; 
• maintaining liquidity and funding contingency plans; 
• monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against regulatory requirements.  
 
The Treasury Department receives information from business units regarding the liquidity profile 
of their financial assets and liabilities and details of other projected cash flows arising from 
projected future business. The Treasury Department then provides for an adequate portfolio of 
short-term liquid assets to be maintained, largely made up of short-term liquid securities, loans to 
banks and other inter-bank facilities, to ensure that sufficient liquidity is maintained within the 
Bank as a whole.  
 
The daily liquidity position is monitored and regular liquidity stress testing under a variety of 
scenarios covering both normal and more severe market conditions is performed by the Treasury 
Department. Under the normal market conditions, liquidity reports covering the liquidity position 
of the Bank are presented to senior management on a weekly basis. Decisions on the Bank’s 
liquidity management are made by the Management Board and implemented by the Treasury 
Department. 
 
The Bank also calculates mandatory liquidity ratios on a daily basis in accordance with the 
requirement of the NBG. The Bank was in compliance with these ratios during the years ended                 
31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007. 
 
The following tables show the undiscounted cash flows on the Bank’s financial liabilities and 
unrecognized loan commitments on the basis of their earliest possible contractual maturity. The 
total gross outflow disclosed in the table is the contractual, undiscounted cash flow on the 
financial liability or commitment. The Bank’s expected cash flows on these financial liabilities 
and unrecognized loan commitments may vary significantly from this analysis. 
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The position of the Bank as at 31 December 2008 was as follows: 
 

 Demand 
and less 

than 
1 month  

From 
1 to 3

months 

From 
3 to 6 

months 

From 
6 to 12 

months 

More
than

 1 year  

Total 
gross 

amount  
Carrying 

amount 
Deposits and balances from 
banks and other financial 
institutions 10,032  2,888  - 1,785  9,785  24,490  22,553
Amounts payable under 
repurchase agreements       2,807   -  - -     2,807            2,801 
Current accounts and 
deposits from customers     47,434         4,908         2,360        5,961         2,346         63,009          62,045 
Other liabilities       1,268            219   - -  -          1,487            1,487 

Total     61,541         8,015         2,360  7,746       12,131   91,793          88,886 

Credit related 
commitments 9.818  -  - -  -  9,818  9,818
 
 
The position of the Bank as at 31 December 2007 was as follows: 
 

 Demand 
and less 

than 
1 month  

From 
1 to 3

months 

From 
3 to 6 

months 

From 
6 to 12 

months 

More
than

 1 year  

Total 
gross 

amount  
Carrying 

amount 
Deposits and balances from 
banks and other financial 
institutions 6,656  2,230  - 267  7,237  16,390  14,251
Current accounts and 
deposits from customers 53,246  4,700  5,921 4,946  1,812  70,625  69,635
Other liabilities 621  281  - -  -  902  902

Total 60,523  7,211  5,921 5,213  9,049  87,917  84,788

Undrawn credit line and 
overdraft commitments 15,747  -  - -  -  15,747  15,747
 
For further information on the Bank’s exposure to liquidity risk at year end refer to Note 34.  
 
 
26 Capital management 
 
The NBG sets and monitors capital requirements for the Bank.  
 
The Bank defines as capital those items defined by statutory regulation as capital for Banks. 
Under the current capital requirements set by the NBG banks have to maintain a ratio of capital to 
risk weighted assets (“regulatory capital ratio”) above the prescribed minimum level. As at 
31 December 2008, this minimum level is 12%. The Bank was in compliance with the statutory 
capital ratio during the years ended 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007. 
 
 
27 Commitments 
 
At any time the Bank has outstanding commitments to extend loans. These commitments take the 
form of approved loans and credit card limits and overdraft facilities. 
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The Bank provides financial guarantees and letters of credit to guarantee the performance of 
customers to third parties. These agreements have fixed limits and generally extend for a period of 
up to five years.  
 
The contractual amounts of commitments are set out in the following table by category. The 
amounts reflected in the table for commitments assume that amounts are fully advanced. The 
amounts reflected in the table for guarantees and letters of credit represent the maximum 
accounting loss that would be recognised at the balance sheet date if counterparties failed 
completely to perform as contracted. 
 
 2008 

GEL’000 
 2007

GEL’000 

Contracted amount    
Undrawn credit line commitments               2,022   973  
Undrawn overdraft facilities 7,796  14,774  
Letters of credit 232  32  
Guarantees               9,406   6,176  

 
The total outstanding contractual commitments to extend credit indicated above does not 
necessarily represent future cash requirements, as these commitments may expire or terminate 
without being funded. 
 
 
28 Operating leases 
Leases as lessee 

Non-cancelable operating lease rentals are payable as follows: 

 2008  
GEL’000  

 2007 
GEL’000  

    
Less than one year     386   104  
Between one and five years     387   840  

     773   944  

 
The Bank leases a number of premises under operating leases. The leases typically run for an 
initial period of two to five years, with an option to renew the lease after that date. None of the 
leases includes contingent rentals. 
 
During the current year GEL 630 thousand was recognized in the income statement in respect of 
operating leases (2007: GEL 491 thousand). 
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29 Contingencies 
 
Insurance 
 
The insurance industry in Georgia is in a developing state and many forms of insurance protection 
common in other parts of the world are not yet generally available. The Bank does not have full 
coverage for its premises and equipment, business interruption, or third party liability in respect of 
property or environmental damage arising from accidents on Bank’s property or relating to the 
Bank’s operations. Until the Bank obtains adequate insurance coverage, there is a risk that the loss 
or destruction of certain assets could have a material adverse effect on the Bank’s operations and 
financial position. 
 
Litigation 
 
In the ordinary course of business, the Bank is subject to legal actions and complaints. 
Management believes that the ultimate liability, if any, arising from such actions or complaints, 
will not have a material adverse effect on the financial conditions of the results of future 
operations of the Bank. 
 
Taxation contingencies 
 
The taxation system in Georgia is relatively new and is characterised by frequent changes in 
legislation, official pronouncements and court decisions, which are often unclear, contradictory 
and subject to varying interpretation by different tax authorities. Taxes are subject to review and 
investigation by a number of authorities, which have the authority to impose severe fines, 
penalties and interest charges. A tax year remains open for review by the tax authorities during the 
six subsequent calendar years; however, under certain circumstances a tax year may remain open 
longer. Recent events within Georgia suggest that the tax authorities are taking a more assertive 
position in their interpretation and enforcement of tax legislation. 
 
These circumstances may create tax risks in Georgia that are substantially more significant than in 
other countries. Management believes that it has provided adequately for tax liabilities based on 
its interpretations of applicable Georgian tax legislation, official pronouncements and court 
decisions. However, the interpretations of the relevant authorities could differ and the effect on 
the financial position of the Bank, if the authorities were successful in enforcing their 
interpretations, could be significant. 
 
 
30 Related party transactions 
 
Transactions with the members of key management 
 
Total remuneration included in employee compensation (Note 10): 
 
 2008 

GEL’000 
 2007

GEL’000 
    
Members of the Supervisory Board      714   13 
Members of the Management Board      448   393 

   1,162   406 
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The outstanding balances and average interest rates as of 31 December 2008 and 2007 with the 
members of the key management personnel are as follows: 
 
 2008 

GEL’000  
 Average 

interest rate 
 2007  

GEL’000  
 Average 

interest rate 

Balance Sheet        
Assets        
Loans to customers  1,255  14%  1,075  16% 
Other assets 500  0%  -  - 
        
Liabilities        
Current accounts and deposits from 
customers        370 

 
6% 

 
64 

 
3% 

 
Other amounts included in the income statement in relation to transactions with the members of 
the key management personnel are as follows: 
 
 2008 

GEL’000 
 2007

GEL’000 

Income statement    
Interest income 131  116 
Interest expense 13  - 

 
 

Transactions with other related parties 
 

The outstanding balances and the related average interest rates as of 31 December 2008 and related income 
statement amounts of transactions for the year ended 31 December 2008 with other related parties are as follows.  

 

 
Entities with significant 
influence over the Bank  

Close family members of 
key management 

personnel  

Companies that are controlled 
or significantly influenced by 
key management personnel  Total 

 GEL’000  

Average 
interest 

rate  GEL’000  

Average 
interest 

rate  GEL’000  

Average 
interest 

rate  GEL’000 

Balance Sheet            
Assets            
Loans to customers           -         -        255 17%       2,663   17%      2,918 
Liabilities     
Deposits and 
balances from banks 
and other financial 
institutions    10,322   8%          -            -              -               -     10,322 
Current accounts and 
deposits from 
customers           -         -        273 9%          829   5%      1,102 
Income statement     
Interest income           -         -          43           -           212               -          255 
Interest expense         660         -          13           -               7               -            680 
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The outstanding balances and the related average interest rates as of 31 December 2007 and related income 
statement amounts of transactions for the year ended 31 December 2007 with other related parties are as follows.  
 

 
Entities with significant 
influence over the Bank  

Close family members of 
key management 

personnel  

Companies that are controlled 
or significantly influenced by 
key management personnel  Total 

 GEL’000  

Average 
interest 

rate  GEL’000  

Average 
interest 

rate  GEL’000  

Average 
interest 

rate  GEL’000 

Balance Sheet            
Assets            
Loans to customers -  - - - 325  17% 325
Liabilities     
Current accounts and 
deposits from 
customers -  - 157 - 354  11% 511
Off balance sheet 
items     
Guarantees -  - - - 199  - 199
Undrawn credit line 
and overdraft 
commitments -  - - - 103  - 103
Income statement     
Interest income -  - - - 93  - 93
Interest expense -  - 3 - -  - 3

 
31 Cash and cash equivalents 

 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year as shown in the statement of cash flow 
are composed of the following items: 

 
 2008 

GEL’000 
 2007

GEL’000 
    
Cash 9,052  7,126 
Due from the National Bank of Georgia – nostro accounts  3,216  12,719 
Placements with banks and other financial institutions – nostro accounts 9,949  3,212 

 22,217  23,057 
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32 Fair value of financial instruments 
 

The estimated fair value of all the Bank’s financial assets and liabilities, as required to be disclosed 
by IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures, approximates their carrying values.  

 
The estimates of fair value are intended to approximate the amount for which a financial instrument 
could be exchanged between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length transaction. 
However given the uncertainties and the use of subjective judgment, the fair value should not be 
interpreted as being realisable in an immediate sale of the assets or settlement of liabilities. 
 
As disclosed in note 16 the fair value of unquoted equity securities with a carrying value of GEL 54 
thousand (2007: nil) could not be determined. 

 
 

33 Average effective interest rates 
 

The table below displays the Bank’s interest bearing assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2008 
and 2007 and their corresponding average effective interest rates as at that date. These interest rates 
are an approximation of the yields to maturity of these assets and liabilities, except for loans from 
European Bank for Reconstruction and Development (EBRD) and Government of Georgia of GEL 
13,099 thousand, the interest rates on which are reviewed on a semi-annual basis based on LIBOR 
as follows: GEL 10,002 thousand - 2 February 2009, GEL 3,097 thousand - 1 February 2009. 
Maturity of  the loan from EBRD is 2012, maturity date of the loan from Government of Georgia  is 
2016.  

 
 

Value
GEL’000 

 2008
Average
effective

interest rate 

 

Value 
GEL’000 

 2007
Average
effective

interest rate 

Interest Bearing Assets   
   
Due from the National Bank of Georgia   
Mandatory minimum reserve deposit   
- USD     1,295 2% 4,541  2%
   
Placements with banks and other financial 
institutions   

 
 

 
 

 
 

Nostro accounts   
- GEL          14 8% -  -
- USD     8,334 2% 1,634  3%
- EUR     1,092 3% 1,126  3%
Deposits and other advances to banks   
- GEL     3,000 10% -  -
- USD - - 2,095  10%
   
-EUR        177 3% -  -
   
Loans to customers   
- GEL   36,077 18% 41,798  17%
- USD   23,903 20% 19,708  18%
- EUR     3,514 18% 968  17%
- Other          37 22% 2  24%
   
Held to Maturity investments   
Debt and other fixed-income instruments   
-GEL 3,076 12% -  -
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Value
GEL’000 

 2008
Average
effective

interest rate 

 

Value 
GEL’000 

 2007
Average
effective

interest rate 
Interest Bearing Liabilities   
   
Deposits and balances from banks and other 
financial institutions  

 
 

 
 

 
 

Vostro accounts   
- GEL     1,740 13% -  -
- EUR          71 5% -  -
Deposits   
- GEL     5,000 17% 5,608  9%
Loans   
- GEL     2,100 13% 3,000  14%
- USD   13,099 7% 5,613  10%
   
Amounts payable under repurchase     2,801 9% -  -
 - GEL   
   
Current accounts and deposits from   
Current accounts and demand deposits    
- GEL   10,640 6% 12,320  8%
- USD     4,792 5% 6,250  4%
- EUR        884 3% 879  4%
- Other          80 3% 43  3%
Term deposits   
- GEL     5,436 13% 7,435  10%
- USD      5,990  10%  9,042  8% 
- EUR      3,338  8%  2,002  8% 
- Other           13  10%  31  10% 
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34 Maturity analysis 
 
The following table shows assets and liabilities by remaining contractual maturity dates as at 31 December 2008.  
 

 Less than 1
month 

 1 to 3
months 

 3 months 
to 1 year 

 1 to 5
 years 

 More than
 5 years 

 No    
maturity 

 
Overdue 

  
Total 

Assets GEL’000  GEL’000  GEL’000  GEL’000  GEL’000  GEL’000  GEL’000  GEL’000 
                
Cash    9,052            -              -               -            -            -           -         9,052  
Due from the National Bank of Georgia    4,511            -              -               -            -            -           -         4,511  
Placements with banks and other financial institutions  13,242            -              -               -            -            -           -       13,242  
Loans to customers 13,581  10,455     16,243     17,840    2,253           -      3,159   63,531  

Available-for-sale assets      -         -         -              -            -            54          -              54  
Held to maturity investments    2,974            -           102             -            -            -           -         3,076  
Property and equipment         -             -              -               -            -     12,833          -       12,833  
Intangible assets         -             -              -               -            -          162          -            162  
Other assets       832         2,104       1,911           -            -           -         4,847  
Total assets   44,192    10,455     18,449     19,751     2,253   13,049     3,159    111,308  
                
Liabilities                
Deposits and balances from banks and other financial 
institutions     9,938  

 
   2,481  

 
   1,429  

 
  8,573  

 
  132      -        -   

 
   22,553  

Amounts payable under repurchase agreements     2,801            -              -               -            -        -        -         2,801  
Current accounts and deposits from customers   47,420      4,873       7,727       1,679        346           -           -       62,045  
Other liabilities     1,268         219            -               -            -            -           -         1,487  
Deferred tax liability           -             -              -               -            -          369          -            369  

Total liabilities 61,427  7,573  9,156  10,252  478   369          -       89,255  
                
Net position as at 31 December 2008 (17,235)  2,882  9,293  9,499  1,775  12,680    3,159   22,053  

Net position as at 31 December 2007  (28,226)       (424)    18,497     11,692     5,953      8,412     1,604      17,508  
 
Except for loans from banks and other financial institutions (Note 33), these remaining contractual maturity dates also represent the contractual interest rate 
repricing dates of financial instruments. 
 
The amounts in the table above represent carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities as at the reporting date and do not include future interest payments. 
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35 Currency analysis 
 
The following table shows the currency structure of assets and liabilities at 31 December 2008: 
 
` GEL USD EUR Others  Total
 GEL’000 GEL’000 GEL’000 GEL’000  GEL’000

Assets    
Cash      4,429     2,428           17       2,178          9,052 
Due from the National Bank of 
Georgia      2,863      1,630           18              - 

 
        4,511 

Placements with banks and other 
financial institutions      3,013     8,692      1,361          176 

 
      13,242 

Loans to customers    36,077    23,903       3,514            37        63,531 
Available-for-sale assets           54            -            -            -               54 
Held to maturity investments      3,076            -            -            -          3,076 
Property and equipment    12,833            -            -            -        12,833 
Intangible assets         162            -            -            -             162 
Other assets 4,412        435           4,847 

Total assets    66,919    37,088 4,910       2,391      111,308 
    
Liabilities    
Deposits and balances from banks 
and other financial institutions      9,001   13,481           71 - 

 
      22,553 

Amounts payable under repurchase 
agreements      2,801            -            -            - 

 
        2,801 

Current accounts and deposits from 
customers    32,102   22,313      7,389          241 

 
      62,045 

Other liabilities 835        585           64              3  1,487 
Deferred tax liability 369            -            -            -  369 

Total liabilities 45,108 36,379 7,524 244  89,255

   
Net balance sheet position as of   
31 December 2008 21,811 709 (2,614) 2,147 

 
22,053

Net balance sheet position as of         
31 December 2007    18,147        398     (1,064)            27 

 
      17,508 
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